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Serving the
Nation with Pride
The MBA Alumni Association of the University of Colombo would endeavor to play 

an active role in shaping the destiny of our motherland. We would partner with 

other professional bodies to ensure that our voices are heard, where important 

national priorities are discussed with the regulators and steps implemented to 

create a better future for our future generations. The Association would also strive 

to enhance the positioning of the “University of Colombo” brand as the 

preeminent MBA Qualification in the country.
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VISION

MISSION

OUR ASSOCIATION

“To be the f  irst choice in
business governance”

To Contribute  to the growth and development of the 
Colombo University MBA Programme. Partner in the 
country’s economic and social development, by 
contributing to the national education programme. 
Build and promote business, cultural relationships 
and links with other Associations having similar 
purpose here and overseas. Improve professional and 
personal life of members.

The MBA Alumni Association - University of Colombo is a 

growing professional body of MBA Graduates of the 

University of Colombo with a 700 plus membership. It is an 

independent body affiliated to the University and it has 

been in fruitful existence since 1997.

The Association has established itself as a well known 

Association of professional managers with its members 

holding responsible positions in the areas of Management, 

Banking & Finance, Human Resources, Marketing, 

Engineering and IT in reputed organisations in the 

corporate and state sector.

Its plethora of membership activities includes developing 

management and knowledge skills of its members, MBA 

students and other corporate executives. We work towards 

enriching the quality of professional and social life of MBA 

students graduating from the University of Colombo. 

The Association also contributes to the general 

socio-economic development of the country through 

various programmes and activities carried out by its vibrant 

and dynamic executive committee with the support of the 

membership and others.
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From its inception in 1997, the MBA Alumni

Association of the University of Colombo has actively 

enhanced the MBA program of its respective University.

It is now proud to be a leading business forum for 

professional development in Sri Lanka. This elevated 

status raised the need to resemble its branding to fit its 

vision - “First Choice in Business Governance”.

A unanimous decision was taken to rebrand the logo as 

a key action point at the brainstorming session held in 

July 2019. A logo committee consisting of 17 members 

led by the Secretary of the Association was appointed to 

work with Berkinster Studios to develop a novel concept.         

This was a challenging task given the association’s 

broader mission, values and attributes. Yet the direction 

was set; to venture out of the box in creating a simple yet 

distinct mark. After dozens of concepts and hundreds of 

iterations something unique was born.

The result was a dynamic logo that cleverly resembles 

the University of Colombo while conveying the core 

values and attributes of the Association.         



(Left to Right)

Standing:

Dulanjie De Silva, Senaka Ekanayake, Ranjan Dissabandara, Prabath Kaushalya, Suraj Radampola, Sameera Wickramarathna, 

Prashan Costa, Chathura Siyambalapitiya , Jude Fernando, K.T. Supeshala, Kulendran Sivaram, Neil De Mel, Neil Perera,

Jude Silva, Sarma Mahalingam, Upali Ratnayake, Saranga Wijeyarathne, Chamila Cooray

 

Seated:

Anusha Wijeguneratne, Chandima Samarasinghe, Vidushan Premathiratne, Boshan Dayaratne, Dr. Pradeep Dharmadasa 

(Dean – Faculty of Management & Finance), Snr. Professor Chandrika Wijeyaratne (Vice Chancellor, University of Colombo), 

Manohari Abeyesekera, Mr. Vipula Gunatilleka (Chief Guest – 22nd AGM), Thusitha De Silva, Ranga Ratnayake, Eshani 

Thenuwara, Lasintha Ferdinando, Chris Corea

Executive Committee 2019-2020
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MESSAGE FROM
THE PRESIDENT 

I pen this message, at a time when the world is devastated 

with an unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic which has 

claimed many innocent lives.  During this two month 

lockdown period, it has given us a moment to reflect, 

pause from our hectic corporate life to realize what’s really 

important in life – good health, happiness and taking care 

of our loved ones. 

Last year, on 27th June 2019, I took over the leadership 

mantle of the Association, at a time when the country was 

slowly recovering from the brutal April Easter Attacks.  The 

Theme under my Presidency was “Serving the Nation 

with Pride”. As professionals, it’s our duty to influence the 

policy makers to create a better tomorrow for our citizens 

and future generations.  

During the year, we couldn’t carry out some planned 

project activities due to reasons beyond our control 

(explained in detail in the Operational review), which 

resulted in a financial loss. However, in an intangible front, 

the Association has been able to create a stronger bond 

with our Alma Mater, University of Colombo. This year is 

also symbolic, as we took the initiative to rebrand our 

Association’s logo to suit the changing times after a period 

of 23 years from its inception.

Although it was a challenging year coming to an end, yet 

we persevered.  Let me place my appreciation to the 

Executive Committee, who supported me in this journey.  

I take this opportunity to wish the Incoming President 

Ranga Ratnayake and his team for a successful tenure.  

I also wish to thank the Vice Chancellor Senior Prof. Madam 

Chandrika Wijeratne, Registrar Mr. Edward, Dean

Dr. Pradeep Dharmadasa, MBA Coordinators, and the 

Non-Academic Staff who have always been accessible to 

us in spite their busy work schedules. 

My warm thanks goes out to the Editor of Daily FT-

Mr. Nisthar Cassim and Mr. Chrishantha Jayasinghe – 

Managing Director Sarva Integrated who have supported 

us in our media communications and design creatives.

Last but not least, I wish to   place a special Thank You to 

the Members of the Association residing both local and 

overseas who came forward during the Covid-19 

pandemic to share their knowledge to the undergraduates 

through online webinars, and the overwhelming support 

received for  our fund raiser, collecting  Rs. 505,000 to help 

our undergraduates who are facing financial constraints.

“Ask not what your country can do for you – ask what 

you can do for your country” 

Former President of USA – Late John F. Kennedy

Manohari Abeyesekera

President

MBA Alumni Association

University of Colombo
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MESSAGE FROM
THE VICE CHANCELLOR

I congratulate Madam President and members of the 

Executive Committee of the MBA Alumni Association of 

the University of Colombo (UoC) on the occasion of the 

23rd Annual General Meeting of your esteemed 

Association, being online for the very first time.

The University of Colombo is conscious of the numerous 

challenges that you, as leaders of the corporate sector, 

had to face over the previous year with equanimity and 

determination. The lessons you learned and the 

experience gained being ably shared with our student and 

academic community is much appreciated.

The UoC also encountered parallel challenges over the 

past year, that required our conscious attention and 

appropriate action on issues ranging from national 

security, ethno-religious harmony to health and safety. 

Your presence at many of these events organized by UoC 

added much strength to our purpose and provided 

professional and moral support to our endeavors. I thank 

you once again for your relentless pursuit to inspire and 

support our students. You are indeed their role models.

The COVID 19 pandemic has created new problems while 

also opening up new vistas for virtual learning and effective 

function. The UoC community is very appreciative of your 

association’s early response to discuss the issues faced 

beyond health. 

 

I wish the MBA Alumni Association of the University of 

Colombo the very best and do look forward to your 

continued support for the Faculty of Management and 

Finance to sustain a connected view of education, service 

and research.

Stay safe and well! 

Yours truly, 

Snr. Professor Chandrika Wijeyaratne

Vice Chancellor

University of Colombo
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MESSAGE FROM
THE DEAN

At the outset, on behalf of the Faculty of Management &  

Finance of the University of Colombo, I congratulate on 

your well-deserved success during the year.

Last year you were able to organise two very productive 

seminars - "Future of Sri Lanka: View of Political Next Gen" 

and “Economics of the Covid -19" Webinar with industry 

leaders. The Economics of the ”Covid-19” seminar 

recorded an overwhelming response and the discussion 

was focused on how the country’s economy will survive 

with the ”Covid-19” pandemic and its unprecedented 

economic and business challenges. 

The MBA Alumni Association promotes friendly and 

professional alliances amongst its members for the best 

interests of the business community. They also focus on 

issues related to welfare and educational activities of both 

postgraduate and undergraduate students of the Faculty. 

My Faculty thanks the Association for coaching skills 

development program of undergraduates.

The Faculty is grateful to the Association for providing 

tangible and emotional supports over the period. I expect 

that we continue to support each other and work as one 

strong team for our university, industry and our country.

I take this opportunity to express my earnest appreciation 

to the outgoing President Ms. Manohari Abeyesekera and 

her team of Executive Committee Members and also to 

congratulate the incoming President and Executive 

Committee Members.

Dr. P. Dharmadasa

Dean

Faculty of Management & Finance 

University of Colombo 
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MESSAGE FROM
THE TREASURER

I extend my gratitude to all of our sponsors, media partners, 

event partners and our members who contributed to our 

programmes during the year.

Even though 2020 will continue to be a challenging year for 

the Association due to Covid 19 pandemic, I am confident 

that the Association will find innovative ways to continue its 

contribution towards its members, the University and the 

society.

My special appreciation goes to the Vice Chancellor

Snr. Professor Chandrika Wijeyaratne and the members of 

the Faculty of Management and Finance of the University of 

Colombo for their valuable support and encouragement.  

 Finally, my sincere gratitude goes to the President,

my fellow Executive Committee members and all the other 

members of the Association who extended their support 

and contributed to another great year.

Eshani Thenuwara

Treasurer

MBA Alumni Association

University of Colombo

It is a great pleasure and an immense honour to present the 

Audited Financial Statements of the MBA Alumni 

Association University of Colombo for the year ended

31st March 2020.  I thank the Association and its 

membership for the trust that they placed in me by 

appointing me the Treasurer for the term 2019/20.

The year under review has been a challenging year due to 

the economic and political uncertainty that prevailed in the 

country and later the global pandemic Covid -19. In the 

midst of such challenges, our dynamic Executive 

Committee managed to organize various events to the 

benefit of the members and the society at large.

Investment in fixed deposits has increased up to

Rs 9.06 Mn, an increase of 8.89% compared to the previous 

year despite us  recording a loss this year due to  the 

cancellation of the usual signature events such as the Pre 

Budget Forum and the Post Budget Forum as there was no 

government budget presented during the term 2019/20. 

We enrolled 39 members during the financial year where 

we earned Rs. 390,000/- as membership income.

Four members submitted the applications last year, but 

completed this year.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE  YEAR 2019 / 20

Manohari Abeyesekera

President

Ranga Ratnayake

Deputy President

Boshan Dayaratne

Vice President

Vidushan Premathiratne

Secretary

Eshani Thenuwara

Treasurer

Chandima Samarasinghe

Assistant Secretary
Lasintha Ferdinando

Assistant Treasurer

Thusitha De Silva

Immediate Past President

OFFICE BEARERS
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TRUSTEES

Pubudu De Zoysa

Upali Ratnayake K.T. Supeshala Chathura Siyambalapitiya

Prabath Kaushalya Kulendran Sivaram Nishantha Jayasooriya

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
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Anusha Wijeguneratne Jude Fernando



Suraj Radampola Chamila Cooray Dulanjie De Silva

Senaka Ekanayake

Ranjan Dissabandara Sameera Wickramarathna Prashan Costa
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Neil De Mel

Neil Perera Saranga Wijeyarathne Jude Silva

Sarma Mahalingham

PAST PRESIDENTS

Chris Corea Hilary Fernando
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The year commenced with a Brainstorming Strategy 

session held at Jetwing Beach Negombo.  Mr. Priyanga 

Dassanyake came as the resource personnel, proving a 

unique session on leadership and team work based on 

Lego models. During the Strategy Session,   the Executive 

Committee unanimously agreed to opt for a new logo to 

resemble the Association in a more dynamic manner. 

The first public event was held in the first week of 

September 2019, where we were able to bring in the youth 

wing leaders of all mainstream political parties under one 

platform to listen to their aspirations and to hear what are 

the bottlenecks affecting them.  This was a unique event 

held at the Kingsbury Hotel, which was graced by the 

Madam Vice Chancellor, where the public was able to listen 

to the future leaders, at free of cost. 

The next event in which we had our efforts pinned was to 

invite the leading Presidential Candidates to a single 

platform for a live-debate on their vision for Sri Lanka, on 

topics of economy, health, education, inclusivity etc.; similar 

to the lines of the US Presidential Debates. Unfortunately, 

this didn’t become a reality, due to some of the prominent 

candidates not accepting our invitation to participate on 

one stage. It’s our belief that  in  the years to come, our 

nation and the country’s election laws be revised to include 

debates bringing in all Presidential candidates to one 

common stage, where as citizens we could evaluate our 

leaders in a more decisive manner.  We then looked at an 

alternative forum with leading economists, to review the 

Policy directions leading up to the Election. However, we 

had to abandon this event as it was too close to the 

timelines imposed by the Election Commissioner for

public events.
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As you may be aware, the Association’s flagship events are 
the Pre and Post Budget Sessions. However, both these 
events didn’t materialise as 2019/2020 was an election 
year, where there was only an interim budget to finance the 
Government activities. This had a dent on the Association’s 
financial performance, resulting in a financial loss for the 
year.  However, we were able to manage the Association’s 
finances without uplifting any long term fixed investments, 
which has increased to over Rs. 9 Million.

From an intangible qualitative front, we were able to build 
up a stronger relationship with our Alma Mater University of 
Colombo.  Our sincere thanks goes to our Patron and Vice 
Chancellor, Madam Senior Professor Chandrika Wijeratne 
who has been a tower of strength to us. We have partnered 
with the University in supporting the University’s MBA 
program, by providing resources for the interview panel in 
selection of MBA candidates, MBA induction and our 
Alumni members are also actively sharing their knowledge 
and their practical experience with the MBA students as 
guest lecturers. In addition, our Executive Member Mr. Upali 
Ratnayake was invited as a Guest of Honour to address the 
Science graduands at their Convocation held at BMICH. 
We were honoured by the invitation of the Vice Chancellor 
to attend the University of Colombo International Research 
symposium, which had many foreign academia visiting the 
University. An evening reception was held at the College 
House, which was lit and decorated beautifully.

We made new ground in actively recruiting new members 
to the Association at the last December where we were 
given permission to have a registration desk at the MBA 
Convocation held in BMICH. 

During the year we were able to enrol 39 new members to 
the Association which included members from both the 
Traditional MBA and the Executive MBA streams. Four 
members submitted the applications last year, but 
completed this year. We also introduced a MBA induction 
program for the new members, which would be a 
continued in the years to come. The CEO of Sri Lankan 
Airlines Mr. Vipula Gunathilaka who also joined the 
Association as a new member gave a brief speech on how 
MBA helped his international career.

During the month of January 2020, we organized an 
evening forum with the Cricketing Legend Roshan 
Mahanama on the theme “Leadership with a Legend” at 
Hotel Galadari. In February, we organized the annual 
member fellowship event -MBA Night with Band Black at 
Hilton Colombo Residencies. It was a glamorous event, 
with a good participation from the members who enjoyed 
the fellowship and networking. The Members Night went 
off till the early hours, with a line-up of attractive prizes   for 
the winners of the raffle draws and various dance 
competitions. 

In March 2020, we had organized to feature one of
Sri Lanka’s most prominent business icon as “King of 
Brands”, on 31st March at the Movenpick Hotel.  It was 
unfortunate, that due to Covid-19 we were compelled to 
postpone this session .  

The Association was active even during the Covid-19, 
where activities were on stand still. We were one of the first 
Associations to organize a successful webinar in early April, 
which featured prominent business leaders from apparel 
industry, tourism along with veteran bankers and IT 
professionals to hear out their plans post Covid-19.  This 
was our Association’s first international session, where out 
of 5000 + views, 10% was from overseas investors.  We 
were also able to assist our Alma Mater by requesting our 
membership to come in as guest lecturers on video calls to 
share their experience with the undergraduates. We were 
humbled by the response by our members, not just from Sri 
Lanka, but from overseas countries such as USA and 
Australia.  

In addition, the Vice Chancellor officially wrote to the 
Association requesting assistance to help the 
undergraduates who are facing financial difficulties during 
the Covid -19 pandemic. The Executive Committee 
approved Rs. 100,000 and we also made an appeal to our 
membership for donations. We were overwhelmed with the 
response, where we were able to collect Rs. 505,000 for the 
University Distress Fund. 

This year we took the initiative to rebrand our Association’s 
logo, as we believed that it needs to change with the times.  
It took  long hours  of deliberating, selecting a brand which 
echoed the brand values of knowledge, wisdom, growth.
A  simple, modern, minimalistic logo was created, to  ensure 
that in our marketing communications,  the brand would 
have a top of the mind recall ability in the public’s eye . 

We also were active in our media communications in press, 
electronic and social media during the year. A special 
Thank you to our Media Partners – Nisthar Cassim, Editor 
Daily FT, and Mr. Chrishantha Jayasinghe – Managing 
Director Sarva for the creatives.

Overall, a challenging year, but we made our presence and 
contribution felt to the University and to the Nation.

Manohari Abeyesekera

President

MBA Alumni Association

University of Colombo
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PAST PRESIDENTS (1997-2019) 

Chanaka Ellawala
(1997/1998)

S R Sadanandan
(1998/1999)

Sarath Kumarasinghe
(1999/2000)

D Dharmadasa
(2000/2001)

K U Pushpakumara
(2001/2002)

Chris Corea
(2002/2003)

Neil De Mel
(2003/2004)

Kalyani Rodrigo
(2004/2005)

Prasad Jayasuriya
(2005/2006)

Rohan Seneviratne
(2006/2007)

Hilary Fernando
(2007/2008)

Neil Perera
(2008/2009)
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Anusha Wijeguneratne
(2009/2010)

Jude Fernando
(2010/2011)

Pubudu De Zoysa
(2011/2012)

Jude Silva
(2012/2013)

Saranga Wijeyarathne
(2013/2014)

Rohana Ellawala
(2014/2015)

Lalith Sumanasiri
 (2015/2016)

Sarma Mahalingham
(2016/2017)

Irshan Jayah
(2017/2018)

Thusitha De Silva
(2018/2019)



22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Our Association has a great talent pool and we have an 

obligation to devote that in developing leaders that could 

steer the country forward. Manohari articulated the need for 

a reverse brain drain and the necessity for universities to 

create entrepreneurs, rather than job seekers. She also 

stated that the Association would commit to work jointly 

with the University and the National Chambers to serve the 

nation with pride. Manohari quoted John F Kennedy- do 

not ask what your country can do for you, but what you 

could do for your country and concluded her speech. 

The 22nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the MBA 

Alumni Association of the University of Colombo was held 

on the 27th of June, 2019 at Orchid Hall, BMICH. The 

occasion was attended by over 150 participants, inclusive 

of guest invitees, past presidents and members. Mr. Vipula 

Gunathileka, CEO, Sri Lankan Airlines graced the occasion 

as the Chief Guest, along with the Guest of Honor, Senior 

Prof. Chandrika Wijeyaratne, Vice Chancellor of the 

University of Colombo and Dr. Pradeep Dharmadasa,

Dean of the Faculty of Management & Finance. 
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In handing over the Association, the outgoing President 

Thusitha De Silva congratulated the newly elected 

committee and presented the key highlights of his 

successful tenure. Thusitha placed emphasis on the 

important events conducted, partnerships with vital 

institutions and financial performance.  

The newly elected President of the MBA alumni 

Association, Ms. Manohari Abeyesekera presented that her 

theme for the year will be "Serving the Nation with Pride".



Mr. Vipula Gunathileka, began his address by highlighting 

the importance of time management, resolving conflicts 

and interactivity with people of diverse backgrounds as key 

learnings of the MBA program. The importance to embrace 

challenges and foresee the opportunity embedded in them 

were elaborated as prominent attributes. Mr. Gunathileka 

also encouraged the audience not to be afraid to take risks 

and welcome the challenge such tasks may present.  

Senior Prof. Chandrika Wijeyaratne emphasized the need to 

work collectively to address societal shortfalls. The need to 

link undergraduates with career opportunities were also 

highlighted, elaborating on the requirement to provide 

support for the development of cultural activities. Senior 

Prof. Wijeyaratne also went on to detail out the importance 

of creating visibility for the University, not only among the 

students, but also among the public as a whole. 

The rest of the office bearers appointed were Deputy 

President – Ranga Ratnayake, Vice President – Boshan 

Dayaratne, Secretary – Vidushan Premathiratne,

Treasurer – Eshani Thenuwara, Asst. Secretary – Chandima 

Samarasinghe and Asst. Treasurer – Lasintha Ferdinando. 

According to the Constitution, the most Senior Trustee of 

the Association retired and Ms. Pubudu De Zoysa was 

appointed as the new Trustee for a period of three years.

MBA Alumni Association - University of Colombo | Annual Report 2019/20 16



ANNUAL PLANNING SESSION

The annual planning session focused on finalizing the 

roadmap of the events and activities for the executive 

committee year of 2019/20. The session commenced with 

corporate trainer Priyanga Dassanayake conducting the 

team building session using LEGO Smart Play based 3D 

models under the theme “Serve the Nation”. Soon after, the 

President opened the planning & strategy session with the 

proposed agenda and invited each executive committee 

member to introduce themselves to get to know each 

other.

The President unveiled her plan and the theme for the year 

“Serving the Nation with Pride”. The concept highlighted 

that the MBA Alumni Association of the University of 

Colombo (MBAAA) would endeavor to play an active role in 

shaping the destiny of our motherland. MBAAA would 

engage with other professional bodies to ensure that our 

voice is heard, where important national priorities are 

discussed with regulators and steps implemented to create 

a better future for our children. The Association would also 

strive to enhance the positioning of the “University of 

Colombo” brand as the preeminent MBA Qualification in 

the country.

17



The executive committee was later split into strategy 

groups on the above mentioned focus areas, with the task 

to propose new ideas and the way forward. 

Past President Lalith Sumanasiri also led a presentation on 

the characteristics of a good logo and branding. A 

comparative study of the MBAAA vis-à-vis international 

university alumni’s and local alumni’s were presented by 

Vice President Boshan Dayaratne. Each of the past project 

chairs of the previous year was also given an opportunity to 

share their experiences and the lessons learnt. 

The Annual planning session was held on the 6th and 7th of 

July 2019 at Jetwing Blue, Negombo. The organizing 

committee for the session included Vidushan 

Premathiratne, Ranga Ratnayake, Chandima Samarasinghe 

and Eshani Thenuwara.

Team Building

Three Year Plan, Strategy and Implementation 

Member Engagement & Development

University Liaison

Contribution to Society

Digital Media & Communication Strategy

Appointment of Sub-committees and Project Chairs

This year emphasis was placed on adding a new program 

to the already existing successful event portfolio of the 

alumni, comprising of the pre & post budget forum and 

management conference.  Changing the existing logo to a 

more prominent one inculcating the key attributes of the 

alumni such as good governance, wisdom and 

professionalism, was discussed in length with the executive 

committee deciding unanimously to move the process 

forward. Importance was also placed on preserving the 

value of the MBA qualification through the interaction with 

the University, society and others. Other key focus areas of 

the forum included the following: 
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THE FUTURE OF SRI LANKA:
VIEW OF POLITICAL NEXTGEN FORUM

The forum was organized with the intention of creating a 

platform for the next generation youth leaders to express 

their views on how their respective parties could work in 

unison, and which policies would be most relevant to 

building a peaceful and economically advanced Sri Lanka.

The discussion centered around the open minded 

approach of the youth and their different perspectives  to 

reform Sri Lanka’s political culture, whether it is the 

Constitution, the Executive Presidency, the Parliamentary 

System or the Judiciary. Economic challenges, 

reconciliation needs, change of system and the installation 

of competent people to public office were the main topics 

of discussion.
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The forum featured youth representatives of leading 

political parties such as the United National Party (UNP), Sri 

Lanka Podujana Peramuna (SLPP), Janatha Vimukthi 

Peramuna (JVP), Tamil National Alliance (TNA) and 

Democratic People’s Front (DPF). The featured panelists 

included Milinda Rajapakshe, Rasika Jayakody, Eranga 

Gunesekera, Janagan Vinyagamoorthy, Jeevani 

Kariyawasam and Ragu Balachandran. The event was 

moderated by Nisthar Cassim, Editor/ Chief Executive of 

Daily FT. Former Dean of the Faculty of Management & 

Finance, Senior Professor H. D. Karunaratne delivered the 

keynote address.

The forum was held on 3rd October, 2019 at The Kingsbury 

Hotel, Colombo.  Over 100 participants attended the event. 

The forum was conducted in partnership with Daily FT and 

NextGenSL. IDM Nations Campus, The Gemtrans 

Engineering Company, Diamond Trading and Sri Sun Steel 

were the main sponsors of the event. The project was 

co-chaired by Kulendran Sivaram and K.T. Supeshala, 

whilst being ably supported by Ranga Ratnayake, Suraj 

Radampola, Dulanjie De Silva, Chandima Samarasinghe, 

Eshani Thenuwara, Chathura Siyambalapitiya and 

Vidushan Premathiratne. 
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MEMBER INDUCTION DAY 

The first ever “Member Induction Day” was the latest 

addition to the continuous series of successful events 

conducted by the Association.  The main purpose of the 

event was to formally welcome the new members enrolled 

within the year 2019 and integrate them into the MBA 

alumni fraternity. 

The new members were informed of the importance of 

being an alumni member and the role played by the alumni 

in its vision of becoming the first choice in Business 

Governance. The forum was structured to help new 

members to understand the Association, the values 

entrusted as members, and how they can contribute in 

driving the Association to achieve its mission. 

Past Presidents of the Association Thusitha De Silva,

Lalith Sumanasiri, Saranga Wijeyarathne, Pubudu De Zoysa 

and Sarma Mahalingam spoke briefly on their journey as an 

alumni member and their experience in leading the 

Association. The guest speech was delivered by Vipula 

Gunatilleka, CEO of Sri Lankan Airlines. 

The event was held on the 28th of January 2020. The project 

was co-chaired by Vidushan Premathiratne and Chandima 

Samarasinghe.
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BLACK FIRE NIGHT 2020

Two participants were chosen MBA King and Queen.

President Manohari delivered the welcome speech and the 

Vote of Thanks was proposed  by Co-chair Chathura. The 

MBA Night committee was headed by Co-chair Chathura 

Siyambalapitiya and Co-chair Senaka Ekanayake with other 

amazing committee members; Saranga Wijeyaratne, 

Chandima Samarasinghe, Dulanjie De Silva, Ranjan 

Dissabandara, Manohari Abeyesekera, Ranga Ratnanyake, 

Suraj Radampola, Upali Ratnayake, Eshani Thenuwara, 

Chamila Cooray, Prabath Kaushallya, Sameera 

Wickramarathna, Prashan Costa, Anusha Wijegunaratne 

and Lasintha Ferdinando.

Black Fire Night 2020, The Annual Dinner Dance of the MBA 

Alumni Association, University of Colombo with the Band 

Black,was held on 15th February 2020 at the Union Ballroom, 

Hilton Cololmbo Residences with a very wide  member 

participation. 

This is the occasion when our members get together 

annually to celebrate, to renew friendships, and enjoy a well 

deserved outing with their spouses.

The organisers had gone to great lengths to arrange an 

evening with music dancing gifts, food and drink a raffle 

draw, exhibition dancing from ADC Dancing Cycle and 

many other surprises.The food was very tasty and in plenty 

as were the drinks.They had obtained several sponsorships 

for the evening.
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EVENING WITH
ROSHAN MAHANAMA

An evening forum with Roshan Mahanama, the former 

cricketing legend, was organized by the MBA Alumni 

Association on the 29th of January at Hotel Galadari from 

5.30pm to 8.30pm. This evening forum was under the 

theme “COURAGE & CLASS” : CLOSE ENCOUNTERS WITH 

LEADERS & LEADERSHIP which was made open for MBA 

Alumni members and non-members to take part.

This was indeed a great opportunity to listen to a wealth of 

experience from a cricketing legend that is useful for the 

corporate world today in many ways. Roshan Mahanama 

who is also a great speaker touched upon key areas 

applicable for today’s corporate world such as Target 

orientation, survival, prompt decision making, flexibility,

Can do attitude, being visionary, Thriving, Work Life 

Balance, Charisma, Personal Branding and valuable 

leadership lessons to many corporate leaders and leaders 

to be. The event was mainly based on an initial 

presentation by Roshan Mahanama followed by a Q&A by 

Nisthar which was extremely an engaging session. 

Not only the event was a success with over the expectation 

of attendees but also valued and appreciated by many 

based on the post event feedback. Not only that, was also a 

mega opportunity for many to network after the event.

There were a few pillars behind the success of the event 

namely Dulanjie De Silva, Upali Ratnayake, Sameera 

Wickramarathna, Vidushan Premathiratne, Suraj Radampola 

& Jude Silva  and many others supported in different ways.

 

Also the main sponsors of the event were HNB Bank,

HNB Assurance, Akbar Brothers and CPM Sri Lanka without 

whom the event would not have been a success.
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ECONOMICS OF COVID-19 WEBINAR

27

The association was attentive in providing expert guidance 

on shedding more light on how the country’s economy will 

survive and recover amidst the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The latest initiative was part of the broad initiative taken by 

association to help many businesses crippled by the 

Covid-19 lockdown and resulting downturn in the 

economy.   

The webinar conducted for the first time, brought together 

industry leaders, professionals to share key insights on both 

short term and long term perspectives. Key discussion 

points included the importance of government in tourism to 

bounce back, the option of Ayurveda marketing to attract 

winter visitors, revival of China to rebound retailer 

movement that would surge apparel sales, winners and 

looser by product category, new tech opportunity to 

support social distancing in IT, government measures 

pressuring the banking system and the importance of 

reforms.

The forum featured leading corporate leaders of key 

sectors of the economy sharing their views on how 

companies are facing the current situation and the 

strategies required post COVID-19. The key sectors 

discussed at the forum included tourism, banking,

apparel and IT.

The panelists of the forum included Hiran Cooray 

(Chairman, Jetwing Hotels), Lakmini Wijesundera 

(Founder/ CEO, IronOne Technologies and BoardPAC) , 

Jonathan Alles (CEO, Hatton National Bank), Dr. W. A. 

Wijewardena (Former Central Bank Deputy Governor)

and Hasitha Premaratne (Finance Director, Brandix Group).

The forum was moderated by Nisthar Cassim, Editor/ Chief 

Executive of Daily FT.

The Webinar was held on 9th April, 2020.  Over 500 

participants witnessed the live streaming of the forum.

The discussion was organized in partnership with Daily FT. 

TIIKM was the technical partner for the event. The project 

was Co-chaired by Vidushan Premathiratne and Eshani 

Thenuwara, whilst being ably supported by Suraj 

Radampola.
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CONTRIBUTION AND
ENGAGEMENT WITH THE UNIVERSITY

This year we were fortunate because we had six occasions 

for collaboration. A very important event in the University 

calendar is the Annual Research Symposium which was 

held in November 2019.The EXCO was invited to 

participate in the proceedings and later at fellowship and 

dinner.College House was specially decorated for it  with 

several marquees and with music. We were invited to the 

Vice Chancellor's Table.

The EXCO was also invited  to the inauguration of the 

incoming MBA batch in September where the President 

Abeysekara addresses the  students. Annually the Dean of 

the Management Faculty invites the EXCO to assist the 

University at the interviews of new candidates.

This year too in November we had the honour of joining the 

lecture panel in this exercise.

Your Committee has always  emphasised  the value of a 
close affinity and linkage it should have with the 
University.
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We also,  for the first time were present  at the Annual 

convocation to meet new students and invite them to join 

the Association. Several  newly graduated MBA's joined tje 

Association as new Members. A induction ceremony was 

held in January to welcome them. When the Faculty 

wanted a venue for  their Marketing Seminar, we were able 

to arrange The Lakshman Kadirgamar Institute for it.

Finally, when the University asked the EXCO to make "an 

inspiring speech" at the June Undergraduate Convocation, 

Upali Ratnayake undertook the role to their satisfaction.

The EXCO is greatly pleased with the University because 

they readily make space available for our meetings. The 

EXCO usually meets monthly at the Board Room of College 

House. This year College House was given a much needed 

face-lift making it very impressive to a visitor.
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GIVING BACK TO OUR ALMA MATER –
DURING COVID -19

In May, the Vice Chancellor wrote to us, stating that the 

undergraduates are facing hardships as the landlords are 

demanding the full rentals.   In addition, although the 

University has taken initiative to conduct on-line classes, 

some underprivileged students do not have computers and 

other resources etc.  The Executive Committee agreed to 

contribute Rs.100, 000 from the Association Funds, and we 

took the initiative to raise funds from the Membership. We 

closed the fund on 31st May, collecting Rs 505,000 to the 

University Distress Fund.

The Association also using our media contacts, were able 

to publicize Vice Chancellor’s letter to draw attention on the 

hardships faced by the undergraduates. This resulted in 

donors coming forward to assist the University. The 

Association also has linked the University with Google 

Cloud India/Sri Lanka to strengthen technical digital 

collaborations, as technology would be a key driver in a 

digital social distanced world which we need to get 

accustomed to 

“We make a living by what we give, but we make a life by 

what we give”- Winston Churchill 

When the Covid-19 pandemic struck, one of the first 

requests we had from the University was requesting the 

Alumni membership to come forward as guest lecturers to 

carry out online webinars to the undergraduates and how 

to deal with Covid-19, the new normal. 

With this request, we appealed to our membership to come 

forward, and we were pleasantly surprised with the 

response from our membership, both overseas and local 

who volunteered to share their time and knowledge with 

our undergraduates.

 We were also one of the first Associations to carry out a free 

Webinar on the impact of the Covid-19 in early April, with 

leading CEO’s from banks, apparel, tourism, IT along with a 

Senior Economist, which had global viewership. This 

webinar was also an opportunity for the undergraduates, 

academia of the University to listen to leading professionals 

as to how they are planning to overcome Covid-19 setback. 

The session was prominently featured on leading 

newspapers/ University of Colombo webpage /social 

media.
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MONTHLY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
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The monthly meetings were held at the Faculty of 

Management & Finance. Few Meetings were also held at  

Board Room - College House of the University of Colombo 

with the guidance of the Vice Chancellor and the Registrar. 

Twelve Exco meetings was held during the year 2019/20 

and the minutes were circulated by the Secretary after each 

meeting.

The Exco meeting is structured in accordance with a 

preplanned agenda that commences with the President’s 

welcome address. The Vice Chancellor, Dean of the faculty 

and Coordinator of the MBA Program, also addresses the 

gathering in the event of their presence at a meeting. 

Monthly finances are presented by the Treasurer to assess 

the financial position of the Association.

All projects and activities of the Association are also 

assessed. The project chairs present the progress of each o  

their committee activities to the Exco. After careful 

evaluation, the project report and the budget is approved 

by the Exco prior to execution. 

There was also two guest presentation by the Chairman of 

the Institute of Directors Mr. Rasiah and Ms. Sandya 

Salgado during the meetings in months August and 

October 2019, respectively. 

All Exco members are treated equally and have equal rights 

in decision making. All resolutions at the Exco would be 

passed either unanimously or by majority preference.

The decisions taken by the Exco would be treated as final.

The Executive Committee (Exco) meetings are held every 

Thursday, on the second week of each month. 

The activities of the MBA Alumni Association of University 

of Colombo are planned, evaluated and implemented at 

each meeting. 

The Executive Committee comprises of MBA Alumni 

members with a diverse range of industry expertise and 

experience, in both public and private sectors.

The main purpose of the Exco is to serve the interest of the 

membership and their stakeholders. They do so by 

contributing to the growth and development of the 

Colombo University MBA Program, partnering in the 

country’s economic & social development and contributing 

to the national education initiatives. The Exco also aims to 

build and promote businesses, and cultural relations with 

other Associations having a similar purpose here and 

overseas. Many initiatives are also implemented to improve 

the professional and personal life of the membership.

A strong relationship is established with the faculty, to 

ensure that the University of Colombo MBA Program 

continues to preserve its supremacy as a leading MBA 

Program in Sri Lanka.
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MEMBERSHIP DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS

The membership development and communication 

strategy focused on creating awareness about the 

Association and driving a broader engagement among the 

membership. The focus was also directed at enhancing the 

membership of the Association by the enrolment of new 

members from the graduating batches during the year. 

The membership development and communications 

teams participated at the inauguration and graduation 

ceremonies of both the weekday and weekend groups.

A total of 39 new members as per accounts joined the 

Association during the financial year.

The first ever member induction day was hosted to formally 

welcome the new members enrolled within the year 2019 

and integrate them into the MBA Alumni fraternity.

The annual newsletter was published during September 

2019 to communicate the appointment of the new 

executive committee, member events and the 

achievements of alumni members. Social media 

engagement was also broadened to drive more traffic 

towards the Association activities and platforms. 

The MBA Alumni Association of the University of Colombo 

conducted an online survey of their membership during the 

month of August and September 2019. The survey was 

piloted with the objective of gaining a broader insight into 

the desires of the membership. The survey resulted in 

receiving feedback from the membership on the 

satisfaction levels of the programs conducted and nature of 

the requirements for future actives. The questions were 

varied to cover a diverse range of topics, and was 

presented in multiple formats. The questions were also 

planned and structured strategically to receive the most 

accurate responses.  

The survey received 114 responses. Survey results 

provided a snapshot of the attitudes and behaviors – 

including thoughts, opinions, and comments about the 

target survey membership. This valuable feedback became 

the baseline to measure and establish a benchmark from 

which to compare results of the past initiatives and plan the 

events for the year. Networking, personal development and 

trainings from institutes were uncovered as key learnings. 

CSR projects also was highlighted. The implementation of 

survey was carried out by Dulanjie De Silva and Suraj 

Radampola.  

The membership engagement committee was led by 

Boshan Dayaratne and Prashan De Costa, whilst Dulanjie 

De Silva and Pubudu De Zoysa co-chaired the membership 

development committee. Digital communication strategy 

was headed by Suraj Radampola and Neil De Mel. The 

Newsletter committee was spearheaded by

Upali Ratnayake.
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MEDIA COVERAGE AT A GLANCE
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MONTHLY NEWSLETTER 
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OUR PARTNERS DURING THE YEAR 2019 – 2020
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

For the Year Ended 31st March
2020

Restated
2019

Note  Rs.  Rs. 

INCOME

Income from Membership 01 390,000 260,000

02 (248,695) 3,227,443

Other Income 03 928,931 813,893

1,070,236 4,301,336

EXPENDITURE

04 (1,341,431) (2,183,861)

05 (92,458) (90,410)

(1,433,889) (2,274,271)

(363,653) 2,027,065

(382,656)06 -

(363,653) 1,644,409

Surplus/ (Loss) from activities

Administrative Expenses

Finance Expenses & Other Expenses

Expenditure Over Income Before Taxation

Expenditure Over Income After Taxation

Taxation
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ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Intangible Assets 07 160,000 -

Investments 08 9,060,210 8,320,804

Total Non Current Assets 9,220,210 8,320,804

Current Assets

Inventory 09 51,280 108,926

Trade & Other Receivables 10 591,040 1,006,220

Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 96,333 3,492,241

Total Current Assets 738,653 4,607,387

TOTAL ASSETS 9,958,863 12,928,191

Equity

Accumulated Funds

9,586,959 9,950,612

9,586,959 9,950,61212

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Income Tax Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

13 275,097 2,491,933

14 64,000 137,448

15 32,807 348,198

371,904 2,977,579

9,958,863 12,928,191

The notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

The Executive Committee of MBA Alumni Association, University of Colombo is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Financial Statements.

Signed on behalf of the Executive Committee of MBA Alumni Association, University of Colombo.

  

Manohari Abeyesekera
President

June 6, 2020

Eshani Thenuwara
Treasurer

June 6, 2020

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As At 31st March
2020

Restated
2019

Note  Rs.  Rs. 
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Operating Activities

Expenditure Over Income Before Taxation

Prior Year Adjustment

Adjustments

Interest Income

Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes

(Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock

(increase)/Decrease Trade & Other Receivables

Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

Changes in Working Capital

Cash Generation From Operations

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

(363,653) 2,027,065

-

(928,931)

(1,292,584)

222,687

(806,763)

57,645 22,000

415,180 (476,618)

(2,216,836) 2,220,827

(73,448) 83,578

Income Tax Paid (315,391) (63,491)

Set Off Against WHT - (34,458)

Net Cash Flow From/(Used) in Operating Activities (3,425,433) 3,194,827

Interest income from Fixed Deposits 928,931 806,763

Purchase of Intangible Asset

Fixed Deposit

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Note A)

Cash in Hand

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Note A)

(160,000) -

(739,406)

29,525

(1,255,965)

(449,201)

(3,395,908)

3,492,241

2,745,626

- -

Cash at Bank 3,492,241 746,616

3,492,241 746,616

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year (Note B)

Cash in Hand -

Cash at Bank 93,629

2,703

3,492,241

96,333 3,492,241

746,616

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Note B) 96,333 3,492,241

- -

(1,817,458) 1,849,786

(3,110,042) 3,292,776

1,442,989

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2020
Restated

2019
Note  Rs.  Rs. 

For the Year Ended 31st March
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.           GENERAL POLICIES

1.1.      BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.2.      EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

These Financial Statements are Presented in Sri Lankan Rupees and have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

These Financial Statements are prepared on the assumption that the association is a going concern, i.e. as continuing in 
operation for the future. It is therefore assumed that the association has neither the intention nor the necessity of 
liquidation or of curtailing materially the scale of its operations.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied as with those applied in the previous year.

All material events occurring after the Statement of Financial Position date are considered and where necessary, 
adjustments made in these Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost (or valuation) less accumulated depreciation, which is provided for 
on the bases specified in 2.2.2 below.

The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses 
thereon.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or improving assets of a permanent nature by means of 
which to carry on the business or to increase the earning capacity of the business has been treated as capital 
expenditure.

1.3.      TAXATION

No Provision for income tax is made due to the fact that the Association is not deemed to carry on business in 
accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No 24 of 2017.

Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize inclusive of provision for bad and doubtful debts.

2.          VALUATION OF ASSETS

2.2.      PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2.2.1.  COST/VALUATION

2.1.      RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended 31st March
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ASSETS PERCENTAGE PERIOD

Furniture & Fittings          20%

Air conditioners Over 04 Years

Over 05 Years

        25%

Mobile Phone  Over 04 Years          25%

The provision for depreciation is calculated on the cost or valuation of all Property, Plant and Equipment other than 
freehold land, in order to write off such amounts over the estimated useful lives by equal installments as follows:

Depreciation is provided when the assets are put into use until retirement / De-recognition.

Intangible Assets are recorded at cost (or valuation) less accumulated amortization, which is provided for on the bases 
specified in 2.3.2 below.

The cost of Intangible Asset is the cost of purchase or development together with any incidental expenses thereon.

Amortization is charged on Straight Line basis over a period of 03 (Three) Years.

Income represent the amounts derived from the related projects/functions which fall within the association's ordinary 
activities.

2.2.2.  DEPRECIATION

2.3.       INTANGIBLE ASSET

3.1.       INCOME

Income is accounted for on an accrual basis and matched with related expenditure. All expenditure incurred in the 
running of the association and in maintaining the Property, Plant and Equipment in a state of efficiency has been 
charged to revenue in arriving at the Operational results for the year.

3.2.       INCOME AND EXPENSES

2.3.1.   COST/VALUATION

2.3.2.   AMORTIZATION

3.           INCOME STATEMENT
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01. Income From Membership

Surplus/ (Loss) from activities

Life Membership 390,000 260,000

390,000 260,000

02.

Newsletter

Paduru Party

Brainstorming Session

Evening Forum 1

Evening Forum 2

Post Budget Seminar

Pre Budget Seminar

Management Conference

MBA Night

Induction Program

7,000  - 

- (68,680)

(268,335) (260,512)

4,240 -

37,170 225,053

- 1,620,925

- 626,579

-

(13,470)

1,044,729

39,350

(15,300)

(248,695) 3,227,443

-

03. Other Income

Administrative Expenses

Finance Expenses & Other Expenses

Interest Income 928,931 806,763

Other Income - 7,130

928,931 813,893

04.

Annual Report Expenses

Annual General Meeting

Audit and Tax Fee

Exco Meeting Expenses

Website Expenses

Other Operating Expenses

Transport Expenses

Promotional and Communication

OPA Membership Application Fee

Bank Charges

Interest OD

190,289 868,215

877,563 1,101,455

64,000 57,000

82,877 67,083

68,097 65,000

17,755 -

5,070 6,940

25,780 18,168

10,000

1,341,431 2,183,861

-

05.

Income Tax06.

11,000 12,150

11,532 12,629

60,000

59,926

-

(50,000)

-

-

65,631

-

92,458 90,410

Bad Debt

Fall in value of Stock Tokens

WHT Write Off

Reversal of over provision

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020
Restated

2019
 Rs.  Rs. 

For the Year Ended 31st March

382,656Income Tax for the Period

382,656

-

-
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Balance
As At

01.04.2019
Rs.

Cost

Logo - 160,000 - 160,000

Logo

Written Down Value

- -33% - -

- - - -

- 160,000 - 160,000

160,000

Additions
During

The Year
Rs.

Disposal
During

The Year
Rs.

Balance
As At

31.03.2020
Rs.

Balance
As At

01.04.2019
Rs.

Rate

Amortization
For The

Year
Rs.

Amortization
On

Disposals
Rs.

Balance

31.03.2020
Rs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible Assets07.

Accumulated Amortization
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Investments08.

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 1153031055789

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115300032870

2,701,648

1,400,000

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115300034669 1,000,000

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115300033082 1,400,000

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115300033235 819,156

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115300037189

8,320,804

-

Inventory09.

Stocks Tokens 51,280

51,280

108,926

108,926

Trade & Other Receivables10.

Post Budget Receivables

Evening Forum Receivables

-

-

14,000

250,000

MBA Night Receivables 190,000 390,000

WHT Receivables 40,688 -

Accrued Interest 360,352 352,220

591,040

96,333

1,006,220

Cash & Cash Equivalents11.

11.1

Cash in Hand

Cash at Bank

-

3,492,241

3,492,241

2,703

93,629

As per the constitution of the Association, three trustees shoud be the signatories (in addition to the President, Secretary and 
Treasurer) for any withdrawals or any borrowings against the fixed deposits or any other investments of the Association.

Accordingly the signatories for the withdrawals or any borrowing will be, any two of the three trustees together with the 
Treasurer and either the President or Secretary.

As At 31st March Restated
2019

2,983,970

1,553,612

1,091,858

1,555,370

-

875,400

9,060,210

2020
 Rs.  Rs. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fixed Deposit - HNB - 115031087422 1,000,0001,000,000
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12. Accumulated Fund

Opening Balance

Expenditure Over Income

Prior Year Adjustment

9,950,612 8,083,516

13. Accounts Payables

Website Payable 68,097 65,000

Life Membership Advance 47,000 47,000

14. Accrued Expenses

Professional Fee Payable (Audit & Tax Fee) 64,000 57,000

64,000 137,448

Other Operating Expenses - 80,448

15. Income Tax Payable

Opening Balance 348,198 63,491

348,198 446,147

- (34,458)

(315,391) (63,491)

32,807 348,198

Provision for the Year

(-) Withholding Tax Paid

(-) Payment

- 382,656

Pre & Post Budget Payable - 2,379,933

Logo Development Payable 160,000

275,097 2,491,933

-

(363,653) 1,644,409

9,586,959

-

Closing Balance 9,586,959

9,727,925

222,687

9,950,612

As At 31st March Restated
20192020

 Rs.  Rs. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17,750

510

75,369
93,629

25,000

192,430

3,274,811

3,492,241

Cash at Bank11.1.

HNB Current Account

Sampath Savings Account

HNB Savings Account



MBA Alumni Association - University of Colombo | Annual Report 2019/20 50

The following balances were restated to correct the interest income recorded on cash basis instead of 

recording on accrual basis over the last years.

16. Disclosure of Prior Period Error

Account Balances Restated

689,731 806,762

349,849

315,391

382,656

348,198

9,950,612

-

9,631,199

352,220

Interest Income

Prior Adjustment

Income Tax Provision

Income Tax Payable

Accumulated Fund

Accrued Interest

- 235,187

Restated
Balance2019

 Rs.  Rs. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MEMORIES FROM THE PAST 23 YEARS

AGM 2015

AGM 2018 University Engagement

MBA Alumni Walk

AGM 2001

Post Budget Forum 2014

Pre budget Forum 2016

University Liaison 2011Exco Meetings 2010

AGM 2013

Pre budget Forum 2016

Paduru Sagge 2018

Management Conference 2012

BREXIT Forum 2016

MBA Night 2018
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MBA Night 2016 Pre-Budget Forum 2012

BREXIT Evening Forum 2016 MBA Night 2018

Pre-Budget Forum 2016 Ad

Management Conference 2017
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FRIDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2011        Price Rs. 20.00                                                        Late City Edition

Faltering SL needs 
time, says Jayasuriya

Forbes spotlight 
on Brandix

P16

P7

High-powered UAE-SL  
biz forum a success

DESCRIBING the Budget 2012 
as one that has delivered the 
3Cs – ‘Clarity,  Consistency 
and Continuity’ – from the 
President Mahinda Rajapaksa-led 
Government, Treasury Secretary 
Dr. P.B. Jayasundera yesterday 
asked private sector what more it 
wanted as an incentive to do bet-
ter.

“ T h e  m e s s a g e  f r o m  t h e 
Budget 2012 is clear. President 
and Finance Minister Mahinda 
Rajapaksa was keen to deliver 
clarity, consistency and continu-
ity, taking on from a very support-
ive Budget in 2011. What more 
does the private sector want?” 
inquired Dr. Jayasundera dur-
ing his address at a packed post-
Budget Forum organised by the 
Daily FT and the MBA Alumni 
Association of  the University of  
Colombo at the Cinnamon Grand. 

He urged business leaders at 
corporate level as well as the 
SMEs to take heart from the 3Cs 
and noted that in an environment 
of  peace and sound macroeco-
nomic fundamentals, the private 
sector must get on with their 
expansions and investments, 
thereby ushering in greater devel-
opment.

Basing the outcome of  an inde-

pendent opinion poll conducted 
by the organisers for the seminar 
(see chart), Dr. Jayasundera said 
that a majority of  64% had said 
that Budget 2012 was good for the 
country. “Yes, the rest may not 
be happy with the Budget and we 
have to and will address these con-
cerns, but let’s move on and make 
the best use of  the Budget 2012.”

He said that despite challeng-
es and scepticism, the country 

had managed to sustain 8% GDP 
growth during the past two years 
whilst reducing inflation and the 
budget deficit.

“We are committed to ensure 
a third year of  similar achieve-
ments. The private sector must 
take advantage of  these benefits 
and do its part,” Dr. Jayasundera 
added at the seminar, for which 
premier blue chip JKH and 
national telecom carrier SLT 
were the strategic partners.

Dismissing allegations of  per-
sonality clashes (in an apprent 
reference to Central Bank Chief  
Nivard Cabraal) over the exchange 
rate issue, the Treasury Secretary 
said economy needs different poli-
cy stimuli at varying times. When 
required the inflation and inter-
est rates are used and at present 
the President via the Budget 
move of  3% devaluation has made 
a conscious decision that export 
growth is critical for Sri Lanka 
given its small domestic market. 
“The Government’s success thus 
far has been shaped by sound fis-
cal and monetary policy,” said Dr. 
Jayasundera who also serves on 
the Monetary Board.

See pages 12, 13 and 14 
for the full coverage of  the 

post-Budget seminar

‘Clarity, consistency and continuity’
MAJORITY SAYS BUDGET GOOD FOR 
COUNTRY: OPINION POLL VIA SMS

This budget is?

Who will be benefitted from this budget 

Public View Audience View

Public View Audience View

GraphicsDesk

Don’t know 
6%

Don’t know 1%
Not good for 
the country 

but rich
will get 
richer 
15%

Not good for 
the country 

but rich
will get 
richer 

4%

Good for the 
country but 
doesn’t offer

relief to the poor 
24%

Good for the 
country but 
doesn’t offer

relief to the poor 
14%

Don’t
know 
21%

Don’t
know 
33%

Rich
people
30%

Rich
people
25%

Everyone
equally
49%

Everyone
equally
33%

Poor
People

0%

Poor
People

9%

Not good for 
the country 

15% Not good for 
the country 

43%

Good for  
the country 

40%
Good for  

the country 
38%

Poll conducted by zmessenger for the Daily FT – MBA Alumni Association of 
Colombo University organised 2012 post Budget seminar 

With 3Cs in place 
what more does pri-
vate sector want from 
President Rajapaksa, asks 
Treasury Secretary Dr. 
P.B. Jayasundera at Daily 
FT-Colombo Uni. MBA 
Alumni Association post-
Budget seminar
Urges business leaders 
to make best use of Budget 
2012 aided by peaceful 
and sound macroeconomic 
environment to deliver 
higher investments and 
growth

BY UDITHA JAYASINGHE

THE detriments of  depreciation 
must be countered by aggressive 
growth in exports, the Central 
Bank Governor said yesterday, 
insisting that impediments to 
the industry had been removed 
by the latest Budget.

Speaking for the first time at a 

2012 Budget seminar, which was 
organised by BDO, Central Bank 
Governor Ajith Nivaard Cabraal 
pointed out that the time had 
come for exporters to deliver. 

Commending exporters for 
being productive, he said that 
exports had increased 20.8% in 
2011 on top of  16% growth being 
recorded in 2010. This is the 
largest increase in 20 years, he 
emphasised. 

However, due to the deprecia-
tion, public debt will increase by 
Rs. 74 billion and oil bill by Rs. 
11 billion in 2012, he remarked, 
insisting that other sections 
were paying for the deprecia-
tion.

“It is fair now to ask export-
ers to deliver. People must ask 
exporters to increase their 
exports by 33% and hit US$ 14 
billion, tourism US$ 1.5 billion 
and remittances US$ 6 billion. 
Earlier we never asked anything 
for return, but now exporters 
must realise that they have an 
obligation that they must factor 
in to their own equations and 
work towards that.”

Cabraal stressed that depre-
ciation would not continue to 
be decided by the Budget, but 
expressed positive sentiments 
as the move had provided “clar-
ity” to monetary policy.

More Page 6

CAUSING more misery to inves-
tors the Colombo stock market’s 
decline aggravated yesterday as 
the benchmark index crashed 
below the 6,000 point level in its 

sharpest plunge since the presen-
tation of  Budget 2012 by President 
Mahinda Rajapaksa on Monday.

The bourse saw Rs. 33 billion in 
value wiped off, increasing the 
amount to Rs. 64 billion for the 
week so far. The near 3% dip by the 
All Share Index brought it to 5,866 
points, a level lowest in 14 months. 
Turnover however was a redeem-
ing Rs. 1.6 billion, nearly triple 
from the previous day. Analysts 
blamed the worsening situation 
in the bourse to panic selling and 
loss of  confidence owing to some 
negative developments in the 2012 
Budget and outside.

More Page 6

Stock market dip aggravates
Rs. 33 b in value wiped 
off, bringing total since 2012 
Budget to Rs. 64 b 
ASI crashes below 6,000 
points-level, year-to-date nega-
tive return tops 11%
Debutant People’s Leasing 
survives volatile day

Says depreciation by 
Budget only a one off, 
admits other sectors will 
suffer but notes growth will 
offset negatives 

A broker sleeps next to a computer at 
the Colombo Stock Exchange yesterday. 
Sri Lanka’s stock market fell nearly three 
per cent to a 14-month low on Thursday 
as investors dumped shares after this 
week's currency devaluation and foreign 
investors sold their positions, amid a 
tightening credit crunch and margin calls 
– REUTERS/Dinuka Liyanawatte

Time for exporters to deliver: Cabraal

 Competent Authorities 
appointed under Takeover  Act
 Tea Board gets  
Rs.1 billion promotion money

See Page 2

Sri Lanka 
Tourism 
achieves 
record-breaking 
750,000 arrivals

The line-up of top industry experts along with Treasury Secretary Dr. P.B. Jayasundera at the Daily FT-MBA Alumni Association of Colombo University organ-
ised post-Budget forum at the Cinnamon Grand – Pic by Upul Abayasekara

P8

Oil price could strangle economic 
recovery hopes: IEA

See Page 18

Sri Lanka will act on evidence of 
atrocities by troops    See Page 6

P24

Press Coverage - AGM 2013 Press Coverage - Post Budget 2011 Post Budget Forum 2016 Flyer
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BY CASSANDRA MASCARENHAS

ENCOURAGING business professionals to 
think and act differently in today’s highly 
competitive and globalised world, the MBA 
Alumni Association of  the University 
of  Colombo presented the Management 
Conference 2012 last week in order to provide 
an opportunity for managers, professionals 
and entrepreneurs to learn from the success 
stories of  top-level professionals.

Themed ‘Beyond Traditional Boundaries,’ 
the conference brought together a diverse 
group of  individuals, each of  whom has 
dared to go beyond conventional limits and 
as a result, excelled in their respective fields. 
Held annually, the conference is one of  the 
key events on the Association’s calendar and 
this year featured a line-up of  entrepreneurs, 
luminaries and business leaders all of  whom 
discussed what inspires them and shared 
their recipes for success, giving attendees an 
invaluable insight of  what it take to be the 
master of  your game.

The importance of commitment
The conference commenced with an 

address from the Chief  Guest at the event, 
the Secretary to the Ministry of  Defence and 
Urban Development Gotabaya Rajapaksa, 
who in his opening remarks commented on 
the conference theme, stating that it is very 
appropriate at this moment in time.

He noted that Sri Lanka is now one of  the 
most peaceful and stable nations in the Asian 
region. “All of  us are stakeholders in this 
country’s future and we have an opportunity 
to build on the foundation of  peace to take Sri 
Lanka to the next level. To contribute effec-
tively to this national cause, we need to move 
beyond our usual comfort zones. We must look 
afresh at our strengths and opportunities. We 
must realise that there is great potential in 
this country for future growth,” he stated.

Rajapaksa went on to say that the country 
is an attractive destination for foreign invest-
ment and yet while tourist arrivals are con-
stantly increasing, he feels that the domestic 
industries, service sector, agriculture and 
fisheries have the scope to go much further.

He encouraged everybody, whether individ-
ual entrepreneurs, corporate executives, pro-
fessionals or public officials, to make the most 
of  these opportunities at this critical time, 
stressing on the need to go beyond traditional 
boundaries and commit to achieve our shared 
destiny as a nation.

“Commitment is one of  the most crucial 
success factors in any undertaking. A seri-
ous issue that Sri Lanka faces today is that the 
level of  commitment at various levels is not as 
great as it should be. This leads to inefficiency 
and underperformance in various institu-
tions, enterprises and projects both in the 
public sector as well as in the private sector. 
Often, the central problem is inadequate com-
mitment at key leadership levels,” the Defence 
Secretary observed.

It is only when leaders are fully commit-
ted to achieving success that their subordi-
nates will follow suit and without committed 
leadership, the desired results will never be 
achieved, he added. To emphasise his point, 
he drew upon the example of  the humanitar-
ian operation that liberated Sri Lanka from 
LTTE terrorism, pointing out that it provides 
a good example of  committed leadership lead-
ing to success.

“The President, I as the Secretary of  
Defence, the service commanders and the key 
senior officers of  the armed services were 
fully committed was fully committed to eradi-
cating terrorism from Sri Lanka. The actions 
and the words of  each of  these individuals 
constantly understood their commitment 
which was critical to long term success,” 
Rajapaksa explained.

When the LTTE carried out air raids over 
Colombo, there was a great deal of  agita-
tion and panic amongst some of  the public. 
The response of  the leadership was critical; 
because of  the President’s immense commit-
ment, he went above and beyond the call of  
duty to ensure that this problem was being 
tackled properly and he made sure that imme-
diate action was taken.

Still on the topic of  the latter stages of  the 
humanitarian effort, the Defence Secretary 
stressed on the fact that it was when certain 
Western governments with vested interests 
tried to intervene and halt the progress of  the 
military, the firm resolve and commitment 
of  the leadership was very clear to see. The 
President, as commander-in-chief  was the 
only person who could call an end to the war. 
He held firm in the face of  immense pressure.

“The French foreign minister and the 
British foreign secretary came to Sri Lanka 
to try and influence him and change his mind. 
Despite this last minute interference, the 
President did not waver and as a result of  his 
firm resolve and unwavering commitment, 
the Western pressure was resisted and the 
final objective was achieved,” he said.

“Commitment to a cause comes through 
motivation. Motivation is what enables people 
to stay focused on their task despite setbacks, 
obstacles and difficulties that arise from time 
to time. It is the duty of  people in leadership 
positions to motivate their subordinates so 
that they work with proper commitment to do 
the task entrusted to them. To motivate others 

successfully however the leaders themselves 
must be fully motivated,” Rajapaksa shared.

He explained that during the entire war 
effort, everyone in leadership positions were 
highly motivated because they knew without 
a doubt that eradicating terrorism was the 

only way of  creating a better future for the 
people of  Sri Lanka. There was never any 
doubt about the great challenges that they 
would face along the way, nor was there any 
doubt about the threats there would be to their 
lives. However, despite these threats, they per-
sisted because they knew that what they are 
doing was correct and would ultimate benefit 
all Sri Lankans.

“Leaders and managers should understand 
that clearly communicating the task at hand 
to subordinates is the best way to motivate 
them. People will be motivated to achieve any 
objective for the country or what is in the best 
interests of  an institution or enterprise they 
work for or the project they are on or for the 
betterment of  the people and the nation,” he 
asserted.

“Communicating the value of  the task 
at hand is therefore critically important. 
Ensuring the commitment of  all service per-
sonnel was one of  the greatest responsibilities 
of  leadership; making sure they understood 
the value of  achieving the end objective was 
critical.”

He then drew upon another example of  how 
people can be motivated for a cause - the urban 
regeneration that is currently being done 
throughout Sri Lanka. These projects involve 
a number of  people from different organisa-
tions such as the UDA, the municipalities 
together with selected members of  the armed 
forces. All of  them work hard towards achiev-
ing success in the various projects entrusted 
to them because they understand that the 
work will make Sri Lanka a more attractive 
destination for tourists and foreign invest-
ment and much more pleasant country for our 
own citizens.

They ensure that all the people involved in 
the enterprise understand the value of  their 
work and the important duty of  leaders and 
managers, he pointed out. There are several 
ways through which the motivation of  people 
can be further strengthened. Uplifting morale 
is extremely important. Taking for example 
the war effort once again, Rajapaksa noted 
that at the time that the humanitarian opera-
tion was launched, society had a very nega-
tive attitude amongst having another military 
campaign against the LTTE. People were tired 
of  war and they did not believe that the LTTE 
could be militarily defeated.

“The respect from society for soldiers was 
also affected by the prevailing situation. This 
had a very negative effect on the soldiers’ 
morale. Desertion rates were high and the 
general spirit amongst services personnel was 
at very low ebb. To overcome this problem, the 
‘Api Wenuwen Api’ campaign was launched. 
The campaign enabled us to show the soldiers 
and potential new recruits the importance of  
the soldiers’ role in society,” he said.

It conveyed to the general public the feel-
ing that the soldiers were their own brothers 
and sisters and that they should be respected 

for their role in protecting our freedom and 
security. The campaign also highlighted the 
seriousness of  the Government with regard to 
the military campaign. Not only did it slowly 
change the social perceptions about the war 
but it greatly uplifted the morale of  the sol-
diers and also encouraged many young people 
to join the military.

In addition to the campaign, several other 
steps were also taken to further motivate the 
soldiers. Campaigns were launched to look 
after disabled soldiers and to provide hous-
ing for soldiers and their families. The ‘Api 
Wenuwen Api’ fund was established to ena-
ble to enable the general public to contribute 
towards the welfare of  the soldiers.

Through such initiatives, the soldiers were 
made to understand very clearly that the 
Government as well as the general public 
truly valued their services. They were given 
the confidence that their interests would be 
looked after no matter what. This provided 
further encouragement to them. Together 
with that clear understanding of  the impor-
tance of  their role and the uplifting of  their 
morale, these measures helped uplift the 
morale of  the soldiers despite the immense 
hardship, sacrifices and risk they would expe-
rience during the war effort.

“As much as commitment and motivation 
are important, consistency of  purpose is 
another critical success factor in any enter-
prise. It is essential that the focus on get-
ting things done is kept from the start of  the 
endeavour until it is completed. We must not 
be satisfied with victories and lose focus on 
the final result. The final objective is the most 
important one. The lack of  consistent focus 
towards the end goal is a fairly serious prob-
lem in society today,” the Defence Secretary 
stated.

“On occasions we make plans for achiev-
ing something but not focusing enough 
on pushing it through to its conclusion. 
Implementation of  plans suffers when ade-
quate focus is not there. This is one of  the rea-
sons why the war against terrorism dragged 
on for such a long period.”

Inclusive business models 
Keynote Speaker at the conference 

International Finance Corporation Country 
Manager for Sri Lanka and Maldives Adam 
Sack up next delivered a presentation that 
revolved around the choices that we make as 
individuals to go beyond traditional bounda-
ries and the choices that the private sector 
will need to make to contribute to the growth 
of  Sri Lanka.

“The next couple of  years will be crucial as 
it will shape whether Sri Lanka will become a 
star of  Asia, which it could be and should be 
with its natural assets, the high quality of  the 
educated workforce, the location within the 
prospering markets of  South Asia, the tra-
ditional trade links – Sri Lanka should be a 

star,” he stated positively. “Or will the deci-
sions made lead to Sri Lanka being just anoth-
er of  those countries where people say, if  only 
we did this or that, the missed opportunities, 
the unfulfilled potential?”

“Which path will Sri Lanka take?” he ques-
tioned. Sack acknowledged that it certainly is 
not an automatic choice and is not predeter-
mined. It will be the result of  hundreds and 
thousands of  decisions made every day, big 
and small decisions made by the Government, 
decisions made by the private sector, civil soci-
ety and citizens to determine the future of  Sri 

Lanka.
“One of  challenges in Sri Lanka is moving 

from the peace dividend to sustained growth. 
The demographic dividend has passed, the 
population in Sri Lanka is aging and will not 
be able to get the advantages that the other 
countries in the region will get from rapidly 
growing workforces,” he observed. 

Sustained growth is going to be harder to 
deliver over the next few years, he warned 
while noting that the ‘Mahinda Chinthana’ 
sets out goals very clearly. Sustained growth, 
he said, is about increasing investment, pro-
ductivity growth and also inclusive growth so 
that all of  Sri Lanka benefits from the future 
development of  the country with no social 
exclusion.

“It seems to me that a lot is known about 
the situation, the opportunities and threats 
in the country. For instance, it’s known that 
the investment is not going to come from the 
public sector. The Government can’t borrow 
much more so the investment will have to 
come from and through the private sector. The 
decisions are going to be made by the people 
in this room and your colleagues and peers in 
other companies and financial institutions.”

Drawing from his own experiences, he out-
lined the different choices that an individual 
may have to face. Commenting on equity mar-
kets, he pointed out that there is a small and 
emerging equity market in Sri Lanka and 
stated that the key message of  private equity 
is to invest when the economy is down and 
sell when the economy is up – buy low and sell 
high. 

Joining the IFC in Vietnam after retir-
ing from finance in the UK, he then worked 
through the private sector to create opportu-
nities to help people improve their lives. “We 

believe that the private sector is the way to 
produce a sustainable path out of  poverty to 
millions of  people. Several countries later, I’m 
now here and it turned out to be an excellent 
choice. We have I think today is that we have 
far too many choices. It’s very exciting but 
also challenging,” he said. 

“A lot of  my colleagues when I was in 
finance thought they didn’t have a choice. 
Well that’s not true. All of  us have a choice 
everyday to quit what we are doing and to do 
something with purpose, that makes a contri-
bution, to do something for the country and 

community if  we so choose.”
He then shared with the audience a busi-

ness model that is out there that those present 
could choose for their companies to follow that 
maybe beyond the boundaries of  what they 
are currently doing. 

He defined inclusive business models’ as 
being models that are stable, commercially 
viable and provides goods, services and oppor-
tunities to people at the base of  the pyra-
mid. The bottom of  the pyramid is generally 
bypassed by most of  the private sector despite 
the fact that it holds potential markets for the 
private sector.

In 2007, IFC with the World Resources 
Institute, an international think tank, con-
ducted a study which called the next four bil-
lion though which it identified how big the 
base of  the pyramid is.

At the time, there were four billion peo-
ple living at or below the level that is defined 
as the base of  the pyramid. People below the 
$3000 a year mark was the base of  the pyra-
mid. 

“Four billion people for those of  us in the 
private sector, is a five trillion dollar market. 
This made businesses around the world sit up. 
The idea of  inclusive business models is that 
we are targeting small holder farmers, peo-
ple who live in slums, people who don’t have 
access to basic goods and services so by doing 
good business you can lift people out of  pov-
erty, give them opportunities to improve their 
lives and this is the heart of  the inclusive busi-
ness model,” Sack explained. 

In South Asia, in four countries, namely 
India, Bangladesh, Nepal and Sri Lanka, there 
are about 1.1 billion people at the base of  the 
pyramid. In Sri Lanka, the data from 2007 
shows that 90 to 95 per cent of  the Sri Lankan 

population are counted as base of  the pyra-
mid. Most of  those in Sri Lanka are between 
$ 1,000-2,000 of  income on a PPP basis. Even 
with this relatively low level of  income, the 
market size is huge with a purchasing power 
is $ 20 billion. 

“Businesses are of  course not sitting still 
and this has got a lot more attention over the 
last five years or so – these inclusive business 
models are beginning to take off,” he noted. 

“The very bottom of  the pyramid will 
require Government interventions, NGOs, 
civil societies, communities – some people 

at the very bottom have too little purchasing 
power and are not engaged in the market at all 
but for the emerging middle of  the base of  the 
pyramid, this is a target for lots of  companies 
now but why isn’t it the target for a lot more 
Sri Lankan companies?”

Sharing a couple of  examples to trigger 
some ideas, he shared the case study of  GE 
Healthcare, company that came up with a way 
of  lowering infant mortality in India. An incu-
bator costs $ 20,000 and a lot of  health centres 
especially in rural areas cannot afford that. 
GE Healthcare built one that could sell for one 
per cent of  that cost – $ 200. 

Sack also added that the IFC is investing in 
this area and is working with partners that 
support this, also trying to capitalise on les-
sons learned and trying to get some markets 
going around the bottom of  the pyramid in a 
number of  countries. 

“We’ve invested five billion dollars of  our 
money into inclusive business models and 
we have now 200 clients in 80 countries, we’ve 
reached something like 100 million at the base 
of  the pyramid. The base of  the pyramid is 
not just consumers that you sell products to 
but it could also be distributors, retailers and 
suppliers.”

Acing the competition
Browns Group of  Companies CEO and 

Managing Director Murali Prakash up just 
before a quick break for lunch, shared with 
the audience some tips from his own life expe-
riences on acing the competition. After view-
ing a quick slideshow of  several top achievers 
including Richard Branson and Steve Jobs, 
Prakash noted that a lot of  people in these 
fields have achieved this seemingly impossi-
ble task. What is it in them, he questioned.

“You talk to them, read their autobiogra-
phies and you notice that they don’t seem to 
have boundaries. They have made boundaries 
irrelevant. Why is it that some can do this and 
others cannot? That’s the million dollar ques-
tion. That’s the question we need to under-
stand when looking at traditional boundaries. 
We also need to ask the question, what are 
these so called boundaries? And more impor-
tantly, who has set them?”

He then went on to outline some of  the core 
factors that bring about these boundaries, 
narrowing it down from hundreds of  reasons 
to a couple of  challenges that he has had to 
face the most in his career, those experienced 
by most Sri Lankans.

The first reason he highlighted was the cul-
tural aspect. “In your childhood, all you here 
is no and don’t both at home and school. We 
are forced to go through this tunnel from our 
childhood and we get used to that, particular-
ly in Asian cultures,” Prakash observed.

Drawing from his own experiences 
throughout his career, he said that when he 
walked into Browns he was told that agricul-
ture is big business and that he should not 
touch it. A couple of  years later, he went on to 
bring in new people and turned the business 
around, quadrupling sales.

The second core factor is the fear of  the 
unknown. “When you are fearful of  the 
future, not wanting to take a risk, you play 
it safe because you don’t want to upset the 
apple cart. Therefore the so called tradition-
al boundaries I say are in our mind. I think 
the traditions have encircled our mind. The 
problem with this is that I can’t come and 
open your mind. This is why some succeed 
and some don’t.”

He then emphasised on the importance of  
having a dream, stating that he believes that 
without a dream, there is nothing for a per-
son to go on. “If  you don’t dream of  achiev-
ing something, you have not started. Start 
with a dream. Life is full of  choices and you 
need to make them. In my opinion you should 
make choices that will help you achieve your 
end dream because then it is much easier for 
you to drive towards your dream and execute 
your choices to achieve you dream.”

Going back to his own experiences, he told 
the audience that there was a time when 
he had a very good position on the board 
of  a multinational company. Yet his dream 
changed at the time to one where he wanted 
to drive a large company, a public quoted 
company.

Multinationals can be somewhat rigid and 
creativity is stifled at times and he therefore 
didn’t want to stay there, Prakash explained. 
It was when he was looking for such an 
opportunity when Browns came about and 
although many people at the time could 
not understand why he would make such a 
change as the group was not doing very well 
at the time, it was in sync with his dream 

and knowing that he could make it work, he 
shifted.

“When I went in there resource allocation 
availability was a problem, there were hostile 
elements all over, staffing issues, profitability 
issues, totally run down brands but they did 
have one thing – a heritage,” he recalled.

“The only thing that kept me going was my 
dream. I knew for sure that I was going to be 

successful. So this is why I keep on telling 
that you have to dream if  you want to be suc-
cessful. I do believe that if  a brand is going 
to work, you have to think big. If  you make 
a choice that is not part of  your dream, you 
will be in eternal conflict and your success 
will suffer. This is true when it comes to both 
your brand and yourself,” he stated strongly.

Sharing his dream with a fantastic set of  
people, they were able to turn around the 
company’s fortunes. He then drew upon 
some brands managed by Browns to prove 
his point. Exide went from a 26 per cent 
market share to 56 per cent market share in 
four years. The brand Eukanuba went from 
a nine per cent market share to 34 per cent 
in four years, growing at a 100 per cent each 
year. FG Wilson which sells at a 15 per cent 
premium over the number two brand in the 
market grew from five per cent to 30 per cent. 
The Browns Group as a whole has enjoyed 
a revenue growth of  168 per cent, net profit 
growth of  995 per cent and market capitalisa-
tion of  1,376 per cent.

“Most of  us don’t go beyond traditional 
boundaries. Don’t be a slave to costs and 
traditional boundaries – let your mind go 
beyond them. I tell everybody that they 
should build castles in the air; at worst, it’s 
better than nothing. Don’t be afraid to walk 
against the industry,” were the inspiring 
comments that drew his presentation to a 
close.

Thinking positive
Maliban Biscuit Manufactories Sales and 

Marketing CEO Ravi Jayawardena delivered 
a presentation on the importance of  think-
ing positively and bringing about a mindset 
change.

He shared several ways of  bringing about 
such a change, stressing on the importance of  
starting at home. 

“One of  the ways you can do this is by talk-
ing to yourself. Spend at least 10 to 15 minutes 
a day on a self  analysis. You are in a big rat 
race. Get out of  the rat race for at least for 15 
minutes. If  you want to start a behavioural 
change, you can’t do it overnight. If  you start 
working on it now, it will take you six months 
to get to at least 30 to 40 per cent of  your goal. 
You will also want to start your positive think-
ing at home, not at work,” he shared. 

He encouraged the audience to look at the 
positives in their family members, not the 
negatives. “We are very good at picking out 
other peoples’ weaknesses. We have PhDs in 
finding weaknesses. Look at their positives. 
That’s very important.”

Using the example of  divorce, he noted 
that one of  the root causes of  divorce is not 
respecting and understanding the partner, 
not seeing the positives of  the partner – they 
are taken for granted.

“In your workplace, your subordinates do a 
lot of  good work but if  you think of  it as they 
are paid to do their job and only call them up 
when they make a mistake, the subordinate 
will feel that the boss doesn’t appreciate his 
good work but only points out his weakness-
es,” Jayawardena noted. 

The learning is everywhere or nowhere, 
he added. When people do make mistakes, he 
explained that one should correct the weak-
nesses using the positives rather than focus-
ing on the weakness itself. If  you want to 
become a positive, start slowly, Jayawardena 
added, pointing out that even Coca-Cola start-
ed a 100 years ago by only selling 90 bottles per 
day to the present day where they sell 12 mil-
lion bottles per day.

“When you are trying to implement a 
behavioural change, don’t try to go for a huge 
dramatic paradigm shift – you will not be able 
to achieve it. Start the journey slowly. Pick 
up the positives,” he stated. “If  you want to 
learn public speaking for example, look at the 
people who do that and try to learn from them. 
You pick up the positives from the environ-
ment around you and that way you become a 
positive person. You can pick out the fact that 
the speaker is nervous but that’s a negative 
and you will never learn from it.”

Jayawardena went on to say that another 
area that should be looked into when trying 
to become positive is to just change gears and 
get to a solution when faced with a problem. 
He observed that a lot of  people learn that 
one should analyse the problem and follow a 
sequence for problem solving. He advised the 
audience not to follow that sequence, instead 
suggested that they just change gears and get 
to the solution.

He then took the example of  Richard 
Branson; the only man to develop a huge 
billion dollar business from scratch. 
Jayawardena noted that one of  his success 
factors is that his recovery speed from bad 
experiences is very fast.

“The strategy is not rocket science – it’s just 
about getting the basics right. In any business, 
in your personal life or your professional life, 
you don’t have to do anything extraordinary 
for as long as you get your basics right, things 
will happen. Have a quality product. Have a 
team with the right skills and enthusiasm – all 
basics. When you go into the fundamentals of  
why they are doing well, whether it is an indi-
vidual, company or country, it is because they 
are doing the basics right and through that 
you achieve unbelievable results.”

Pix by Daminda Harsha Perera

Going beyond traditional boundaries 

Commitment is one of the most 
crucial success factors in any 
undertaking. A serious issue that Sri 
Lanka faces today is that the level of 
commitment at various levels is not 
as great as it should be. This leads to 
inefficiency and underperformance in 
various institutions, enterprises and 
projects both in the public sector as 
well as in the private sector. Often, 
the central problem is inadequate 
commitment at key leadership levels 

– Secretary to the Ministry of 
Defence and Urban Development 

Gotabaya Rajapaksa

It seems to me that a lot is known 
about the situation, the opportunities 
and threats in the country. For 
instance, it’s known that the 
investment is not going to come from 
the public sector. The Government 
can’t borrow much more so the 
investment will have to come from 
and through the private sector. The 
decisions are going to be made 
by the people in this room and 
your colleagues and peers in other 
companies and financial institutions 

– International Finance Corporation 
Country Manager for Sri Lanka and 

Maldives Adam Sack

  

  

Most of us don’t go beyond traditional 
boundaries. Don’t be a slave to 
costs and traditional boundaries – 
let your mind go beyond them. I tell 
everybody that they should build 
castles in the air; at worst, it’s better 
than nothing. Don’t be afraid to walk 
against the industry 

– Browns Group of Companies CEO 
and Managing Director  

Murali Prakash

The strategy is not rocket science – 
it’s just about getting the basics right. 
In any business, in your personal life 
or your professional life, you don’t 
have to do anything extraordinary for 
as long as you get your basics right, 
things will happen. Have a quality 
product. Have a team with the right 
skills and enthusiasm – all basics. 
When you go into the fundamentals of 
why they are doing well, whether it is 
an individual, company or country, it 
is because they are doing the basics 
right and through that you achieve 
unbelievable results 

– Maliban Biscuit Manufactories 
Sales and Marketing CEO  

Ravi Jayawardena
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Special Report

REPRESENTATIVES of  key industries yes-
terday presented their main proposals for 
consideration at the 2018 pre- Budget forum 
organised by the Daily FT and the Colombo 
University MBA Alumni Association with 
Standard Chartered Bank as the Strategic 
Partner.  

Given below are excerpts of  their presen-
tations and key proposals. 

Gateway College 
Colombo Chairman  
Dr. Harsha Alles

If  you take the education 
sector, especially schools, 
Sri Lanka has about 10,000 
schools in the state sector and 
we used to have a very strong 
private sector, such as the church-linked 
schools, and the new emerging sector is the 
international schools and the private higher 
education institutions. 

According to the International Schools of  
Sri Lanka, which I founded and has the best 
established 24 schools, we have over 40,000 
students. Of  the non-members, I’m sure 
there are about another 200 schools. So our 
sector is substantial and in fact we are now 
bigger than the private schools where num-
bers are concerned. 

An important thing to remember is that 
students who attend international schools 
are not a burden to the Government at all; 
the Government does not spend one cent on 
them. Where the institutions are concerned 
everything is a cost to us, including land and 
buildings. Traditional private schools have 
taken many decades to get to this stage but 
we have to do this within our means.

 If  the Government wants to attract pro-
fessionals to return, encourage consult-
ants to be based here then they will look for 
schools like ours that follow the internation-
al curriculum. How the Government should 
look at this sector is to promote it as a hub, 
we have great potential. If  Malaysia could 
do it, I think at least in South Asia we should 
have the possibility to do this.   

Proposals     
Strengthen the people in education so 

that they establish partnerships with for-
eign organisations rather than directly 
going and inviting them to step up here. 

No VAT for education was positive but 
international schools pay all corporate taxes 
and we used to pay at 10% and now 14%, 
which is something you need to look into 
because these costs will be passed on to stu-
dents. The students at international schools 
come from a range of  social and economic 
backgrounds. 

People who want to genuinely invest in 
the industry and buy land, construct build-
ings, such people should be encouraged. A 
tax holiday or a similar measure would be 
welcome as they are long-term investors and 
would discourage people who get into the 
sector for a quick buck and rent buildings 
only to close down later.     

Akbar Brothers Ltd. 
Director Hussain 
Akbarally

The tea industry has been 
facing challenging times. On 
one hand the unrest in key 
markets such as the Middle 
East has resulted in reduced 
volumes and on the other adverse weather 
conditions at home have impacted produc-
tion. Unfortunately we can’t always pass on 
the increased costs to consumers, especially 
in these lower to middle income countries, 
which reduces our margins. 

One thing I would like to address as an 
industry is we pay Rs. 3.50 per kilo of  export-
ed tea as a Ceylon Tea promotion levy. This 
is a fantastic idea if  used wisely but so far 
about Rs. 6 billion has been kept in a fund 
and is in danger of  being used as a political 
tool. Ideally we should use this to give back 
to the tea industry.  Sri Lanka used to be the 
third largest tea producer in the world but 
has now slipped to fourth place and it is just a 
matter of  time before we slip to the fifth slot. 
The industry employs about one million peo-
ple and is a crucial employment generator.

Proposals 
Take Cess funds and give it back to plan-

tation companies to invest in replanting, 
new technologies and new investment as 
well as increase production levels.       

Cess funds to be used to develop new 
markets. Ceylon Tea is doing fantastically 
in countries such as China, East Asia and 
Russia. If  Sri Lanka can get funding, tea 
could be marketed more aggressively in 
these destinations. 

Lack of  consistent power is a challenge. 
Regular power cuts hamper production 
costs, especially for outstation factories 
where the company has had to spend on gen-
erators. Power cuts affect profit margins as 
generators cost four times as much as elec-
tricity provided by the national grid. Giving 
incentives in the Budget to build new power 
plants would benefit industries significantly.    

Spa Ceylon Director 
Shalin Balasuriya 

As a company that is tak-
ing its brand to international 
customers, we would like to 
draw attention to that pro-
cess. We are creating our own 
export channels by taking our 
brand out there and investing 
in it and building our brand for Sri Lanka. 
Support in doing that in any way would real-
ly help, especially with cost. 

Proposal 
Assistance in brand building. One key 

area is in trademark registration, where 
registration has to be done in several classes 
and although in Sri Lanka it’s fairly inex-
pensive when we go out we have found it is 
very costly and also the legal fees are very 
high. 

However, we are not allowed to account 
for it as an expense in the given year; we are 
only allowed to account for it as an expense 
10 years down the line. Therefore we would 
be grateful if  such expenses are allowed to 
be accounted for as expenses in the same 
year as they are made.     

Nawaloka Construction 
Company Ltd. Director 
Harshith Dharmadasa 

Proposals 
The establishment of  a 

real estate investment trust 
I believe is in the final stages 
of  Cabinet approval. If  this 
is expedited there will be a lot of  foreign 
investment that will be attracted to Sri 
Lanka. This will also enable local and small-
time investors to be part of  the growth. So if  
we can get this going it would really assist 
our sector to move forward. 

For the upcoming Budget, if  companies 
are doing advertising and marketing in 
foreign countries then provide them with 
incentives so that they will encourage them 
to seek foreign investment. This would also 
promote tourism. A tax exemption for this 
would be ideal if  it could be considered.  

Chairman Asia 
Securities Ltd.  
Dumith Fernando 

The underlying theme 
here is that we are trying 
to build a prosperous soci-
ety. Prosperity comes from 
earning more money and 
also investing and saving it better. I decided 
to take the approach of  talking about capi-
tal market development from the aspect of  
creating an entrepreneur’s paradise. I think 
in terms of  better funding for them and gen-
erating investment there is greater opportu-
nity. 

In addition, about 25% of  our popula-
tion is over the age of  55 and so savings and 
investment becomes a very important part 
of  how we maintain prosperity. 

Proposals 
Activation of  the Cess fund. In our 

industry there is a Cess fund of  about Rs. 2.6 
billion. Expect it to grow to Rs. 5 billion in 
four years. I think there are three ways this 
could be used but I’m sure there are other 
brilliant ideas as well. 

 One would be to create an education 

program where modules of  personal wealth 
management are taught to students. Unless 
you are in the commerce stream few people 
learn how to balance their accounts and that 
education gap leads to a reduced understand-
ing of  how to manage money later in life. 

Second would be to use funds to create 
better regulations for market surveillance, 
which has not really happened. This would 
increase trust in the capital markets and 
encourage more investors. 

Broaden finance education beyond 
school level. 

Provide tax-free incentives for listed 
share compensation for listed companies. 
This would make the market more attractive 
to foreign investors as it would create more 
liquidity. So one idea we would like to push 
is that 5%-10% of  a company can be given 
out as share-based compensation and that 
can be tax-free so there is an opportunity 
for both the company and recipients. The 
Government would also increase revenue 
through the Share Transaction Levy (STL).    

To make the capital market more vibrant, 
list appropriate state-owned enterprises 
(SOEs). Without doing this trying to push 
our capital market would be like trying to 
get a plane off  the ground without its wings. 
This is probably the single most important 
thing we need to develop our capital mar-
kets. We are not talking about privatisation 
here; we are talking about opportunities to 
raise capital. 

Orion City 
CEO Jeevan Gnanam

  Primary concentration 
of  improving entrepreneur-
ship by improving access to 
funding, access to markets 
and reducing cost of  failure. 
Funding challenges remain 
and tax systems are not very 
positive of  start-ups and the 
challenges they face. We also need to look at 
alternative types of  funding such as crowd 
funding but again the legislation needs to be 
changed around crowd funding. 

Proposals 
Create a system with tax incentives to 

promote start ups. Incentives for start-up 
investments should include provisions to 
avoid double taxation. 

Give Government grants for start-ups at 
the beginning for research and development 
as well as other needs. 

Access to markets is necessary as start-
ups struggle despite proposals to establish 
Sri Lanka as an IT hub. Incubation labs such 
as those established in Singapore to promote 
startups regionally as well are needed. 

Access to payment platforms such as 
Paypal and Stripe could also be a revenue 
earner for the Government. 

Cost of  failure is very high in Sri Lanka 
presently and needs to be adjusted as entre-
preneurs learn from experience and the 
current laws do not allow for risk-taking. 
Therefore propose adjustments similar to 
the US where under Chapter 11 businesses 
can close with limited impact.  

Kapruka.com Founder/CEO  
Dulith Herath 

We in the ecommerce 
industry have seen this 
increasing of  single pack-
ages that are coming into the 
country through Alibaba, 
eBay and other websites. 
Initially we thought this was 
small but it’s almost like 
products raining into the 
country and its going undetected because 
they arrive directly on to the doorstop. This 
means local traders in Pettah have to com-
pete with eBay, so we have to control this, 
in my view at the post office level for it to be 
fair trade and improve commerce in a com-
petitive way.   

Blue Mountain  
Group Chairman  
Hiran Hettiarachchi 

Proposals
 In the last Budget, pro-

posals were made for Real 
Estate Investment Trust 
(REIT) but this was not 
implemented. We propose the 
strengthening of  REIT and 
believe this would be positive for the indus-
try. 

We suggest strengthening the bond mar-
ket in Sri Lanka because real estate devel-
opers mainly depend on a few sources of  
funding. We propose the bond market is also 
strengthened along with the currency deriv-
atives market to increase funding sources. 

Suggest reinstating provisions to claim 
VAT from customers. As some projects in 
Sri Lanka are VAT-exempted we don’t have a 
level playing field. 

Propose licensing the developers. This 
is mainly to protect the customers as many 
small developers have entered the market 
without a strong financial background or 
experience and this has led to increased 
risk in standards. If  a small-scale developer 
makes an error then it can impact the whole 
sector. 

We would also like to request the 
Government’s blessing towards the real 
estate sector as certain officials represent-
ing the Government are spreading the fear 
factor to the market where that can create a 
negative impact on local and foreign inves-
tors.    

Aitken Spence Hotel Management 
Ltd. Director  
Stasshani ayawardana 

Proposals
 Since under the new 

Inland Revenue Act all pri-
vate sector companies will 
be taxed at one rate of  28% 
we request returning the 
Transfer Pricing Regulations. 

Request the Government to continue 
infrastructure projects. While there are cur-
rently strategic investment projects there 
are few companies classified for assistance 
under this category. One reason may be that 
the threshold of  investment is high and the 
approval process is very cumbersome and 
time-consuming. 

While we agree with the Government’s 
policy of  removing tax exemptions for large 
projects we think that upfront levies and 
taxes that are required to be paid for such 
projects even before construction commenc-
es be relooked at. In the case of  NBT and 
PAL the significant outlay at the start of  the 
project drives up costs by as much as 25%, 
which has to be incurred by the company 
before commercial operations begin. Since 
these infrastructure projects are of  national 
important we suggest that projects are eval-
uated and a selection is exempted from NBT 
and PAL in the project implementation stage 
to encourage investment in such projects. 

VAT and Customs Duty exemptions for 
capital investment in the refurbishment 
of  hotels with more than 100 rooms. As the 
Government is focusing on tourism develop-
ment Sri Lanka needs to refurbish its hotels 
at least every seven to ten years to provide 
a competitive advantage regionally. At pre-
sent VAT deferments are not granted even 

though proposed refurbishment adds up to 
substantial amounts. In most cases these are 
large resorts, which can be as much as the 
cost of  construction of  a small new hotel or 
boutique hotel at times, and these are given 
exemptions under the BOI. These could be 
considered as a new investment. We pro-
pose that the Customs Duty be deferred for 
refurbishment projects with more than 100 
rooms, thereby reducing the tax burden on 
companies.  

Mclarens Group Ltd. Joint 
Managing Director Shehara 
Jayawardena

Proposals 
As Sri Lanka has ambi-

tions to be a maritime hub it 
would be imperative that all 
the shipping and shipping-
related services are provided 
at regionally competitive 
rates. This would include 
bunkering and a host of  other services. In 
Singapore at any given time there are 6,000 
ships in anchorage simply to avail of  the 
services provided at the port. Sri Lanka can 
easily attract a percentage of  this market. 
So we need to provide the regulatory frame-
work for this sector, which includes de-regu-
larisation. 

Proper clarification of  shipping related 
services so that they are eligible to be given 
concessions. 

With introduction of  NBT Act want clar-
ity of  shipping and related services. If  this 
2% on the turnover is brought in it will act 
as a deterrent. 

OREL Corporation Ltd. Managing 
Director Kushan Kodituwakku  

Proposals 
Promote invoicing soft-

ware so that in real time a 
company can know if  its 
transactions. 

Get  Inland Revenue 
Department assessors to be 
your partners so that they 
can assist to grow the busi-
ness and change the dynamics of  how 
people would view the Inland Revenue 
Department. 

Because of  the regulatory measures of  
the Government, companies have to recruit 
more staff. For example we have about 20 

people in our Accounts Department where-
as a company in the UK may have two. As 
the Government moves forward to sign Free 
Trade Agreements (FTAs) we need to also 
adjust these regulatory frameworks so that 
companies can become more streamlined 
and competitive. Would like to see things 
become simplified. 

ACL Cables Plc Managing Director 
Suren Madanayake  

Proposals 
SVAT collection difficult 

and should be reconsidered. 
Evaluation for Govt. ten-

ders needs to be consistent. 
Currently different tender 
committees employ differ-
ent methods. Would like to 
see the same criteria applied to enable more 
consistency.

Some local exporters only export about 
20% and it used to come under a preferen-
tial tax rate, which has been taken out in the 
new Inland Revenue Act. Consider possibil-
ity of  reinstating that provision.  

Encourage backward integration with 
incentives and possible preferential duty 
rates for primary raw materials. 

Diesel and Motor Engineering  
Plc General Manager  
Rajeev Pandithage 

As a developing country 
we need mobility to grow and 
with new roads and highways 
coming up this sector has 
become very important. 

Proposals 
Unlike other countries 

we have a very high tax regime, which is 
necessary, but my suggestion is to have a 
stable tax regime. We have changed our tax 
systems more than 20 times in the last four 
years. 

One other factor is the issue of  valua-
tions, which is arbitrary, and can have sig-
nificant impact on the end price. Therefore 
the genuine importer of  a vehicle is not 
competitive in the real market. 

In the goods transfer segment Sri Lanka 
imports trucks that are over ten years old. 
The long-term implications are that vehicles 
that are written off  as unfit for the road in 
other countries end up in Sri Lanka. So Sri 

Lanka should not be a dumping ground for 
old vehicles, especially in the goods trans-
port sector. 

Sustainable view on electric vehicles. It 
is the future but need to look at a long-term 
plan for importing these vehicles. 

Disposal of  old vehicles could be more 
efficient if  plans can be approved to strip 
down vehicles and there are many countries 
that would accept our properly sorted gar-
bage. Would make most of  our re-export and 
earn revenue for the country.    

Access International Ltd. Director 
Shamal Perera 

Proposals 
We find that most of  our 

best qualified professionals 
are leaving the country for 
better opportunities overseas. 
Going back to the 1980s and 
1990s, Sri Lanka had a system 
where first time homeowners 
could get their mortgage deducted against 
their tax. A lot of  private sector employees 
used this method to their advantage and it 
stopped a lot of  brain drain from happening. 
I believe that if  we can ease these expenses 
then we can stop people from buying cars 
with their first salary and go for buying 
houses. This in return would promote the 
real estate, retail and banking businesses as 
well. So we suggest the Government recon-
siders giving incentives to first time home 
buyers.    

In the private health sector there is 
excess capacity and there is excess demand 
in the Government sector. To my under-
standing there is severe down time in health-
care machines and the main objective of  
the government healthcare system is not to 
maintain medical equipment but to provide 
health services. I’m happy to understand a 
Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Unit has 
been established but I’m sad to say in regard 
to the health sector no one in the Health 
Ministry has been told such an initiative has 
been established. So proper coordination 
between the ministry and PPP Unit has to be 
established. 

Medical professionals earn up to 80% 
of  the cost of  private hospitals and with the 
introduction of  VAT it is a very simple cal-
culation on the earnings of  medical profes-
sionals but still the Government struggles to 
understand how much they earn compared 
to how much they declare. I’m not trying to 

ruffle anyone’s feathers but I’m just giving 
my suggestion on how we can increase our 
revenue.       

DFCC Bank Plc  
CEO Lakshman Silva 

Proposals 
Rationalisation of  taxes 

is required. Currently banks 
directly and indirectly pay 
as much as 40% or more of  
taxes. We are required to be 
rated but when it comes to 
some of  the taxes there is 
no differentiation between the banks on 
their ratings. Over the last five or six years 
banks are paying a crop insurance levy 
that had been introduced six years ago but 
we have not benefitted from it. In addition, 
deposit insurance was introduced when 
finance companies went through a troubled 
period and now all the banks, regardless 
of  their ratings, all these payments have to 
be made. This is one of  the key things the 
Government can look at when rationalising 
tax policy moving forward. 

We are in doubt about the tax levies to 
come up in the statutory investments we 
are expected to make with the Central Bank. 
Treasury Bills and bonds we are not sure 
of  the applicable rates because of  the infor-
mation we have received with the rate to be 
increased to 14% but whether that is deduct-
able tax or whether it will be a pay on top of  
taxes applicable on general income. If  that 
duplication happens, naturally there will be 
an impact on the market. 

Banks have actively participated in 
Sri Lanka development bonds and interest 
earned through that was exempted so far 
going forward it is not known yet what the 
situation will be. We would like this issue 
addressed. 

Renuka Hotels Ltd. 
Joint Managing 
Director Shibani 
Thambaiyah 

Proposals 

High direct and indirect 
taxes faced by the industry 
are challenging. Sri Lanka 
has the highest total outflow of  taxes 
on top line revenue in the region, which 
means Sri Lanka outprices itself  in the 
region and we need help to look into this. 

Sri Lanka’s hotel and restaurant indus-
try accounts for 6% of  the total VAT col-
lected, which is the third largest after the 
banking and insurance industries. So it 
would be good for the Government to grant 
concessions for the industry by grant-
ing concessions by reconsidering the tax 
structure. 

Regulation needed for the informal 
sector, which is as high as 50%. We under-
stand that the Government is already 
attempting to bring these establishments 
into the tax net. We urge you to look into 
this as it would create a level playing field. 
Also propose collecting a flat tax rate from 
all unregistered establishments, which is 
also done regionally.  

Sunshine Holding Plc 
Director  
Shyam Sathasivam 

Proposals 
Address the lack of  a 

world-class quality assur-
ance lab. Even though dis-
cussions have been around 
for a long time, the resources 
and impetus from the Government have 
been absent. A lot of  pharmaceutical prod-
ucts can be tested in this way and it would 
also ensure standards. Pharmaceutical 
drugs worth about Rs. 40 billion make 
their way to Sri Lanka every year and 
some of  this is substandard and this can 
be handled efficiently. We propose that 
this be set up as a public-private partner-
ship where the private sector sets it up 
and the Government can use the services. 
This can be done across the board and the 
Government can charge companies for 
using this. There is much public enthu-
siasm for this but the mechanism is still 

missing. Moreover this cannot be done 
only by the Government because ensuring 
world-class expertise and standards cannot 
be done by the State alone. We can work 
with the ASEAN region and if  we want to 
export drugs then we have to meet interna-
tional standards. 

Introduce healthcare vouchers so that 
all citizens are given access to healthcare 
but the Government does not have to per-
form all those services. 

In tea, if  we are going to build a large 
export base then we need to build brands. 
However, local companies may not have 
the resources so I see things like what 
Fonterra has done, which is gathering a 
large number of  producers into one corpo-
rate conglomerate that can go outside the 
country and build. Either we have to go out 
and buy brands or the government should 
go out and buy this and support this pro-
cess. The State needs to back this process 
rather than letting the private sector line 
up at a public bank. We need support not so 
much funding.

WSO2 CEO and Chief 
Architect Sanjiva 
Weerawarana  

Proposals 
The brain drain is a 

severe problem. If  it were 
up to me I would eliminate 
all taxes and rationalise 
all vehicle taxes once and for all because 
this is a key aspiration of  all people. It is 
important for the Government to focus on 
a stable environment for people to live in. 
We need to address ways to attract people 
back but first we need to stop them from 
leaving. 

The Government almost always insists 
on buying foreign software and it does it 
indirectly by saying it should have high 
revenue to bid for a specific tender. Most 
software companies don’t have such reve-
nues. So the government should make this 
a place where local companies get a chance 
to sell their products to the Government 
and give incentives to do so because for-
eign companies pay Sri Lankan companies 
to make systems. 

Expo Lanka Freight 
Ltd. Managing 
Director Saif Yusoof  

Digitalisation is  very 
important and has to be a 
fundamental part of  the 
Government’s vision. This 
could change everything and 
all sectors can be revolutionised because 
what we require now is speed. Create a 
Government portal that would open digi-
talisation to the consumers and public. 
Have a clean slate plan for education, 
police or anything you can name. In places 
like Bali people are flying in from around 
the world to work, we can create such 
ecosystems here as well by bringing this 
new youth, which would give exponential 
growth.   

Astron Ltd. Director/COO  
Ross De Zilwa

Proposals 
Request PAL is waived on 

active raw materials, which 
are imported for the domes-
tic manufacture of  pharma-
ceuticals. These cannot be 
used for anything else and 
would enable us to be more 
competitive when it comes to export prices 
and imported similar pharmaceuticals to 
not have PAL or other taxes on them. This 
places domestic producers at a disadvan-
tage against similar imported products. 

Request that domestic pharmaceuticals 
be exempt from price control. 

In 2014 several pharmaceutical com-
panies entered into a buy-back agreement 
with the Health Ministry through tenders. 
We would like to request formalisation of  
this agreement and it be extended for a fur-
ther five years and additional products that 
we supply be added onto the list and contin-
ued till 2024.     

Pix by Upul Abayasekara

Host of new and progressive 
ideas from next generation 
of business leaders at Daily 
FT-Colombo Uni. MBA  
Alumni Association 2018  
Pre-Budget Brainstorm  
with Finance Ministry

Young leaders show the way for 2018 Budget
BY UDITHA JAYASINGHE 

TAKING on board proposals 
from the private sector, Finance 
Minister Mangala Samaraweera 
and State Minister of Finance 
Eran Wickramaratne yesterday 
acknowledged concerns and 
growth plans from companies and 
pledged to continue engagement 
on key points. 

Speaking at the 2018 pre- 
Budget forum organised by 
the Daily FT and the Colombo 
University MBA Alumni 
Association, with Standard 
Chartered Bank serving as the 
Strategic Partner, State Minister 
of Finance Eran Wickramaratne 
responded candidly to the propos-
als and challenges presented by 
the private sector. In relation to 
requests for tax concessions and 
exemptions, he emphasised that 
the Government remains commit-
ted to maintaining the stipulations 
in the latest Inland Revenue Act.   

“We have only one tax rate and 
that is 28%. The Bill is an effort to 
go into a more rules-based system 
rather than having to sit outside 

Mangala Samaraweera’s office. 
This is the change. A concession-
ary rate of 14% is applied because 
there are no zeros in the system 
and therefore this is the lowest 
rate. We have a few sectors such 
as agriculture, exports and educa-
tion at 14% and we can argue why 
some are in it and others are not.  
But it is a debate and it has been 
settled in this particular way.” 

Raising capital 
Capital investment allowance is 

one way forward, he suggested, 
that would allow for the recovery 
of investment. He also said that 
regarding tea, Sri Lanka has a 
long-term problem that would 
need greater attention and deeper 
policies but acknowledged the 
Government does not want to see 
the industry deteriorate further. 

However, he noted that 
concerns over Cess would be 
addressed, and the discussion 
had already begun. On trademark 
costs of registration, the State 
Minister called for a note that 
would be further explored by the 
ministry. 

“We fully take on board the 
issue of state-owned enterprises 
(SOEs). Here again you men-
tioned the banks and banks are 
capital short. So there is no way 
forward apart from raising capital 
and this is essential for growth. 

If private banks raise capital and 
expand then the state banks will 
inevitably lose market share. If 
they are to compete, the state 
banks need to raise capital. The 
Government Budget is con-
strained and so will not be able 
invest in State banks. So please 
help to get this message across. 
One way is to focus on their core 
businesses,” he said, predicting 
that the local sector will adjust 
along international trends.        

He conceded that legislation 
would take time for startups, 
digitisation, access to payment 
systems, booking platforms and 
incubation labs but polices for all 
these are being considered by 
the Government. “It’s on our list 
because we are very keen to levy 
taxes,” he said, eliciting laughter 
from the audience. Discussions 
on bankruptcy laws have also 
resulted in a “white paper” and the 
Finance Ministry will get involved 

to see that it is going in the right 
direction. 

“The Budget is not the 
Government’s big policy state-
ment. The Budget is a part of the 
Government’s policy,” he added. 

Institutional 
independence 

On real estate he acknowl-
edged industry concerns but 
insisted that as the Central Bank 
is an independent institution the 

Government could not dictate 
what it could or could not say.

“If the Central Bank is making 
statements then that is because 
they have reason to do so. We 
have a responsibility towards the 
public and we cannot let a situa-
tion like what happened in 2008 
and 2009 or in Malaysia happen 
again and then later yell at insti-
tutions for not letting their mes-
sage be known. I, as a part of the 
Government, may also not like 

some of the things that are said but 
I need to say that in defence of the 
statement made,” he stressed.       

Tourism remains a favoured 
sector, Wickramaratne assured, 
noting that the country continues 
to be dependent on its revenue 
but said debates on Airbnb and 
other booking platforms need to be 
within the industry and once a con-
sensus was reached, should tell 
the Government what steps to take. 
The Government would look to 
“creatively tax” booking platforms.     

Positive sentiments: SCB
Standard Chartered Bank CEO 

Jim McCabe was also upbeat 
about Sri Lanka’s prospects for 
growth and reforms. 

“I believe we are all aware of 
the precarious state of the coun-
try’s public finances, which this 
Government has inherited. But 
things are looking up; the deficit 
is narrowing, the tax to GDP ratio 
is reducing, recent regulation 
has been passed to broaden the 
tax net, reserves have improved 
and several high-profile PPPs are 
underway. We can expect key FTAs 
over the next few months that will 
unleash a faster pace of growth.” 

“The time is now to build a 
strong working partnership 
between the private and public 
sector so that in all aspects the 
economy and society can partici-

pate in the improving trend. This 
will require significant give-and-
take with dialogue and genuine 
trust between all parties. The 
country’s annual Budget can 
be that instrument to engender 
improved relations in many sec-
tors of this economy. I believe we 
can all agree that the past two 
Budget processes created much 
expectation but also disappointed, 
possibly due to their desire to 
encompass too much change all at 
once. My recommendation would 
be to set our sights on fewer key 
issues and then ride that sense 
of achievement into the following 
years.”

He noted that economists pro-
jected Sri Lanka to grow in the New 
Year with stronger macroeconomic 
indicators including moderate infla-
tion and reduction of private sector 
credit growth to 15% along with 
stronger reserves and better fiscal 
consolidation. This will over time 
reduce debt, he said, but acknowl-
edged that in the short term Sri 
Lanka would have to tackle wide 
trade deficits and work to attract 
investment. He also called on the 
private sector to be more aware of 
the developments internationally 
and regionally as well as work to 
improve connections so that it is 
better positioned to deal with the 
challenges and opportunities avail-
able.       

GOVT. LENDS EAR TO PRIVATE SECTOR WISH LIST FOR NEXT BUDGET 
Mangala and Eran keen to 
continue engagement as 
clarifications, expansion 
plans and ideas flow from 
stakeholders 

Finance Minister Mangala Samaraweera speaks at the Daily FT-Colombo University MBA Alumni Association organised 2018 Pre-Budget Forum at 
the Hilton Colombo. Others from left MBA Alumni Association President Irshan Jayah, Daily FT Editor Nisthar Cassim, State Minister of Finance Eran 
Wickramaratne and forum's strategic partner Standard Chartered Bank Sri Lanka CEO Jim McCabe
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 BY SHABIYA ALI AHLAM

PwC Director Tax Services 
Charmaine Tillekeratne
SPEAKING on the tax proposals on the 
Budget, I would touch on the salient features. 
The tax proposals on the Budget can be ana-
lysed in five points, of  which the first is sim-
plification and broad-basing of  the tax sys-
tem. In 2011 the policymakers took a bold deci-
sion to simplify and broad-base the tax system 
and assurance was given at that time that this 
trend would continue. It is good to see that 
even in this Budget the trend is maintained 
to a large extent. There are also tax propos-
als that encourage local industries, those that 
affect financial services, and taxes on motor 
vehicles. 

On the simplification of  the tax system, 
there is one consolidated levy on import of  
motor vehicles in place of  the five taxes that 
were previously there, which is the NBT, PAL, 
CESS, VAT and Customs Duty. The Budget 
proposals said that the relevant amendment 
would be made to the VAT and NBT Act but 
the question is whether the sale would also 
be exempted from VAT and NBT or if  it would 
require an amendment to the VAT and NBT 
that are effective from January. However, the 
Customs Duty and consolidated rate came in 
almost immediately so perhaps there needs to 
be a press notice to clarify that.

In the manufacturing of  liquor, there is 
a catch where the manufacturer will not be 
able to claim the input VAT on raw materials 
and overheads which would increase the cost 
of  locally-manufactured liquor. Although 
tax revenue is expected to generate from 
this increase, it is unclear whether the cost 
increase is so prohibitive that people will 
move to cheaper substitutes.

There is a rate reduction on the tax appli-
cable on all employees and previously it was 
confined to professionals and there was much 
debate on the definition of  a professional. 
PAYE tax has been simplified and the 16% is 
applicable across the board to all.

On the withholding tax, for individuals and 
charity constitutions, it was on a scale basis. 

Previously if  an individual was below 500,000 
interest income, there was no withholding 
tax. Now there will a flat rate of  2.5% for all, 
other than the exempted interest and individ-
uals who derive exempting income. Here the 
move is to simplify the tax systems as banks 
are having issues in monitoring. The only 
catch here is that those getting an interest 
income of  below 500,000 will also have to pay 
but that again is a feature of  broad-basing the 
tax system.

In our journey towards simplification and 
broad-basing there may be a few hiccups 
which we will have to iron out and it is not an 
overnight procedure. There are no new tax 
holidays and only the extension of  time on 
the current tax holiday, the investment time 
period and the commercial operation time 
periods. Concessions have been given but no 
new tax updates. 

On tax proposals that encourage local 
industries, there are tax discounts given to 
manufacturers for import substitution. CESS 
on imported rubber has been increased by 
Rs. 10 per kilo. The guaranteed price has 
been reduced for milk and the import of  milk 
powder has a CESS of  Rs. 550 whereas local-
ly-manufactured milk has been reduced by 
Rs. 100 and yoghurt by Rs. 3. The guaranteed 
price of  liquid milk has been increased by Rs. 
50 to Rs. 60. There is also an import tax levy 
on imported agriculture products during har-
vesting period.

On the financial sector the 12% reduction in 
VAT will provide a marginal benefit in terms 
of  VAT and going forward the VAT and NBT 
rate should look to be consolidated as another 
mode of  simplification since VAT already 
contains so many exemptions. VAT is now 
turning out to be more like a turnover-based 
NBT and in that sense it will be better to con-
solidate the two and less administration from 
a commercial angle.

On motor vehicles, the import duty has 
been reduced by 25% on electric cars and 
there is duty concession on buses, small 
buses, vans and gear boxes. Duty permits are 
afforded to Sri Lankans living overseas, per-
haps as an encouragement for them to return.

In conclusion I would like to say that the 
span taken in 2011 has continued and simpli-
fication is on track. However there are few ele-
ments that need to be ironed out with regard 
to administration which I am sure will be 
done in the future. 

DIMO Chairman Ranjith Pandithage
I  would like to cong ratulate the 

Government for formulating a bold and con-
fident Budget. First I would like to speak on 
the triple reduction on skills development. It 
was very much needed to develop the skills 
in the country and I feel the nations such as 
Germany and Japan went through the reces-
sion but they succeeded because they had 
skilled labour. I think the ability to export 
good, skilled labour will bring good money 
and it is a step taken in the right direc-
tion. The monitoring by the Tertiary and 
Vocational Training Council (TVEC) should 
ensure there are no abuses. 

Regarding incentives for personally-owned 
cars, it has come down, especially for cars 
under 1,000cc. Mobility is very much need-
ed for the development of  a country. The 
Government has done extremely well by pro-
viding super roads. Celebrating 75 years of  
existence recently I went to Jaffna through 
Mannar, Trincomalee, Ampara and Colombo 
where one could witness excellent roads but 
unfortunately most of  the vehicles running 
are not road worthy. In Japan they don’t allow 
use of  cross-ply tyres. May be we should do 
the same. 

Overall we are encouraging hybrid cars and 
plug-in electric cars, that will be the future 
and that is a good step taken.

On tax defaulting there is one problem that 
we have been discussing with the Ministry: 
there is a massive undervaluation of  vehi-
cles. One hole has been plugged in by the basic 
price as people were misusing the VAT calcu-
lation and the transacted price, but even with 
the basic price, if  you take the Hit Ad, this 
Sunday – I can only speak for Mercedes Benz – 
the selling price is less than our CIF price.

I see the Customs Chief  is here. If  the 
engine chassis number is given, I can tell the 
price. Ask the High Commission in England 
and go to Mercedes Benz agents and check the 
price. This year alone the cars that have come 
from Mercedes Benz if  you get the correct rev-
enue you can build another Cancer Hospital 
down south. This is because there has been 
massive tax loss.

Furthermore, freezer trucks are tax-
exempt. Importers bring second-hand junk, 
remove the freezer truck and use the chassis. 
The same goes for construction machinery. 
Coming back to the 2015 Budget move, there 
is a single tax at the time of  import, but when 
selling vehicles there is ambiguity.

Cargills Deputy Chairman  
and CEO Ranjith Page

Let me congratulate the Government on the 
2015 Budget. The last time the VAT was intro-
duced I didn’t think there was going to be a 
Food City or any retail outlets. We were faced 
with a challenge, but were able to get about it 
by passing some of  it to the customer. 

There is a small issue with alcohol. In 
terms of  the locally-produced alcohol, we are 
unable to charge a higher price and we also 
don’t have VAT to claim. We tried to increase 
the price charged to the consumer but the 
Consumer Authority does not permit that. 
The seller is also not in favour of  increasing 
the price as they fear it will impact sales. This 
is a situation we have to address. 

The second point I would like to raise is 
that while congratulating the Government 
on the dairy industry on increasing the farm 
gate price, there is a situation where the world 
market prices are tumbling down. The State 
has increased the duties but we find that if  
we are to convert powdered milk into liquid, 
the price to the consumer has to come down. 
In the investments that we have made in the 
industry, we find it difficult to reduce the 
price.

Where we are having a problem is that the 
bulk of  liquid milk that is consumed is by 
middle and higher consumers shopping at 
supermarkets or pharmacies. With the VAT 
threshold rate being brought down to Rs. 100 
million, these retail segments where the con-
version to liquid milk takes place are impact-
ed due to there being no input VAT. This needs 
some thought since while from one side we 
are encouraging to take more milk from the 
farmer, from the other side there is a situation 
where it may be cheaper for some to import 
milk powder and convert that into liquid or 
yoghurt. We will not be doing that since we 
have put in place the infrastructure to boost 
production, thereby ensuring a great saving 
for the nation.

The third point I wish to make is in devel-
oping the youth. I think this is an excellent 
indication where there is encouragement 
for soft skill development where companies 
like us can create employment opportuni-
ties and develop these youth. By developing 
their skills, we will be able to bring foreign 
exchange through the training programs 
and the skills we teach. To continue to do that 
we need to expand our business, but at this 
moment the retail industry is struggling. It 
is a challenge to develop the skills and create 

sustainable employment in this area. It is a 
challenge as the company needs to give them 
at least over $ 150 per month and we are find-
ing it difficult to retain people as well.

hSenid Chairman  
Dinesh Saparamadu

I will look at Budget 2015 from the per-
spective of  the IT and knowledge industry. 
There is a lot of  emphasis on skills develop-
ment and also higher education and R&D. 
One thing that is particularly welcoming for 
us is bringing down the PAYE tax from 24% 
to 16%. There was a lot of  confusion previ-
ously, for example whether an engineer who 
is employed as a manager qualifies as a pro-
fessional. This year’s Budget has addressed 
it. This will help retain and help get people to 
work in our industry. 

One of  the key things in the SLASSCOM 
vision and goals is to be a $ 5 billion industry 
by 2022 and want to have 200,000 jobs and 1,000 
start-ups. For that, the skill development and 
training is a fantastic element that has been 
brought in because we have been encourag-
ing universities to increase capacity. But 
when they increase the capacity, they find it 
difficult to find industry training. This triple 
deduction will help the industry to attract 
them. I have seen this in start-up businesses. 
In Sri Lanka the start-ups bootstrap product 
development through industrial training and 
development. So the deduction is an encour-
agement.

Last but not least, encouraging purchase of  
local software and giving them 100% capital 
allowance. However, this is not well known in 
the corporate sector. In Sri Lanka, 50% of  IT 
companies produce software; the intellectual 
property is owned by our companies. It not 
known well enough to encourage this further, 
so I think overall I see this is a salient point. 
The Nenasala, the ICTFA or smart develop-
ment of  development of  content is also a good 
move. 

Colombo University Department  
of Economics Senior Lecturer  
Dr. Priyanga Dunusinghe

I would like to thank the Treasury 
Secretary for coming up with a Budget that is 
good for all of  us. One of  the key features in 
the Budget is the priority in the skills devel-
opment area for the training teachers and 
also establishing e-learning centres in uni-
versities. I think we could see clearly that 

this Budget has turned in a direction from 
previous priority areas from infrastructure 
development to human capital development 
and soft skill development. It also gives prior-
ity for health. One of  the key features is the 
health checkups. It is good to get people to go 
for medicals above the age of  40 and have reg-
ular medical checkups and that will help iden-
tify non-communicable diseases.

We could also see that when proposing 
there is good coordination with the provin-
cial government. This time there was special 
emphasis to get provincial councils to func-
tion in line with the priorities of  the central 
government. More emphasis has also been 
given again to export promotion in terms of  
facilitating exports and industrialisation in 
giving concessions and assistance in starting 
some businesses. There are also certain incen-
tives for productivity improvement and inno-
vations. Certain pressures have been put on 
plantations to improve productivity. These are 
very much in the positive direction. 

At the same time we feel it is good to spend 
more on research and development carried 
out by the public research and development 
institutions. There is one issue whether they 
can absorb that money in the short run. When 
you go by the amount that was spent in the 
previous years, it was not satisfactory; that 
might be a concern when deciding on the allo-
cation.

We see some assistance given to small pro-
ducers in agriculture; this is a good move, 
assisting them in the short run to come up 
and be competitive. It was a good decision to 
not provide tax concessions since when you 
give subsidies, you prevent the initiation of  
structural formation and one of  the keys to 
economic growth is to let resources to flow 
from low to high productive areas. The struc-
tural change is important and in that respect 
it is good to get away with some of  the subsi-
dies. 

One of  the important elements in the 
Budget is giving and taking into account vari-
ous social groups such as women, children 
and differently-abled people; it is imperative 
to do so since we talk about inclusive growth. 

One of  the issues that we have seen in the 
Budget is that when it comes to implement-
ing, there are barriers. There are many 
features that help to reach the 2020 target. 
Allocating money for 2015 to 2017 is a positive 
move as there would be delays and at the end 
of  the day we know that the money will be in 
that area. 

One of  the messages to the business com-
munity is that the conducive environment is 
there and it is up to you to be risk lovers rath-
er than being risk averse and start initiating 
businesses rather than engaging in activities 
such as buying and selling. Overall I can say 
that the direction is welcome, I am sure, by all 
the segments in society, especially with the 
main focus being human capital formation.

Colombo Stock Brokers Association 
President Dihan Dedigama

I congratulate the Government on a pro-
gressive Budget. We can’t look at stock mar-
ket performance on one budget. There has 
been a continuation of  two to three years of  
work to bring down interest rates and have a 
stable currency and the capital market has 
seen a 20% appreciation already. It has noth-
ing to do with the Budget per se but brings it 
in more confidence in the economy when the 
Government continues to make the environ-
ment investor friendly and positive. With the 
low interest rate continuation, we will also see 
the stock market further draw attention. 

From an international investors’ perspec-
tive, we have seen significant inflows this 
year in comparison to the locals. I still can’t 
understand what they (locals) are looking for, 
but to a certain extent, once the comfort of  
market interest rates remains low, they will 
have to look for other options to invest. As 
some results have come out for this quarter, 
the corporate sectors are also doing well, such 
as those in the tourism and banking sector. I 
think overall it is more about the continuation 
of  Government policy and the economy is 
reflected in the performance of  the stock mar-
ket and I think it is all credit to two or three 
years of  policy decision.

Hambantota District Chamber  
of Commerce Director  
Rohan L Fernando

I must say I am thankful to the Government 
as this time there was focus on SMEs. The 
SMEs, I feel, are the biggest contribution 
to national growth. Most of  the SMEs in 
Hambantota and southern areas are based 
on agriculture. I hope the Government will 
continue to support the SMEs in the near 
future. Most of  the SMEs have to depend on 
industries that are based in Colombo. Most 
of  the products that are being exported have 
to go through the Katunayake airport and 
now we are based in the Mattala Airport. 

Unfortunately these products cannot go 
through the Mattala Airport still as there is 
a need for some more equipment. There is no 
Customs bio-security system. When there are 
perishable items like fruits, vegetables and 
ornamental fish, it is airlifted. In Mattala they 
have to get clearance from the Customs offic-
ers for bio-security, else they cannot export 
the items. If  we have the system in Mattala, 
it will be greatly appreciated. The entrepre-
neurs and SMEs want to become exporters. 
They don’t want to work under someone in 
the future.

For exports, another important aspect 
has to be seen: the Government Quarantine 
Department has to issue a certificate for by-
products and edible products if  they are to 
be exported. The world is becoming more 
advanced, especially the European commu-
nity; they require more and more certificates, 
especially in relation to bacteria and viruses. 
The department doesn’t have this equip-
ment and the SMEs have to go to Kandy to the 
Animal Research Institute to get the certifica-
tion. In certain instances the sample has to 
be sent to Singapore. We can get more orders 
from Europe and other countries. If  you 
look into this matter, this will help the south-
ern development centre. Furthermore, our 
national carrier SriLankan Airlines has the 
highest freight charges for perishable prod-
ucts, so the exporters choose other airlines. 
Some form of  support on freight is welcome. 

Meanwhile, Hambantota is a wind 
power area from April to September. If  the 
Government can encourage people to gener-
ate power through wind power, it will be a leap 
for the country.

For our exporters, we cannot be the way 
we were 10, 15 years ago; we have to change. 
We need to be more modern. Our products 
have to be of  higher quality. Our SMEs 
need to have more advanced warehouses 
with bio-security systems having ultravio-
let light and refrigerating facilities. If  the 
Government gives more grants to SMEs, the 
country will grow more. Results due to sup-
port extended to SMEs in this Budget will be 
seen soon.

Pix by Daminda Harsha Perera 
and Upul Abayasekara

Coverage of the Q&A session of 
the post-Budget Forum will be 
published later this week.

Private sector powwow with PB
Colombo Stock Brokers Association President 
Dihan Dedigama                            

Cargills Deputy Chairman and CEO Ranjit Page                             hSenid Software International  
Dinesh Saparamadu                            

University of Colombo Senior Lecturer  
Dr. Priyanga Dunusinghe                             

PwC Director Tax Services  
Charmaine Tillekeratne                            

Hambantota District Chamber of Commerce 
Director Rohan L. Fernando                            

DIMO Chairman and Managing Director  
Ranjith Pandithage                             

The post 2015 Budget Forum 
organised by the Daily FT-Colombo 
University MBA Alumni Association 
yesterday featured a good panel of 
experts who were asked to make 
their observations. They were Cargills 
Ceylon Plc Deputy Chairman Ranjit 
Page, DIMO Plc Chairman Ranjith 
Pandithage, PwC Director Tax Services 
Charmaine Tillekeratne, hSenid 
Software International Managing 
Director Dinesh Saparamadu, Colombo 
Stock Brokers Association President 
Dihan Dedigama, Hambantota District 
Chamber of Commerce Director 
Rohan L. Fernando and University of 
Colombo Senior Lecturer Dr. Priyanga 
Dunusinghe.  Following are excerpts 
from the respective speakers/panel-
ists at the packed forum held at the 
Galadari Hotel Ballroom with Finnace 
and Planning Secretary Dr. P.B. 
Jayasundera as the Chief Guest.

Breaking down the Budget
 – See page 14

Dr. PBJ unlocks...
In the meantime, we are not 

only looking at revenue. We 
are looking at expenditure. By 
the 24th, we will table our new 
financial regulations, a land-
mark piece of reform. For that 
financial regulation, we had 
benefits from many experts; 
the Fiscal Affairs Department 
itself has commented on it. 
These reforms are taking 
place, so it is a sunshine 
budget. It has to be.

Then we are also looking 
at the medium term. You are 
all talking about the 2015 
Budget. Please don’t. That 
era is over. Now we are talk-
ing three-year medium term. 
Because of the legal require-
ment, the Appropriation Bill 
is presented to Parliament 
and annual authorisation is 
obtained for spending subject 
to those limits, those borrow-
ing limits and regulations and 
managing and going back 
to Parliament and reporting 
it again. That is a continuous 
process of accountability and 
fiscal responsibility.

Three year framework
But in the meantime, the 

Budget is presented in a 
three-year framework. You 
can’t start on 1 January 
and finish everything on 31 
December. There is procure-
ment, project planning, prepa-
ration, progress payment. 
In order to consolidate this 
process, we are also strength-
ening commitment controls. 
That’s why we have done 
slightly better this year. There 
weren’t too many arrears 
this year. Now the Treasury 
releases money on time. 
Everybody got their salaries 
on time and contractual pay-
ments on time provided they 
complied with the delivery. 
Only some are yet to pay their 
taxes and I will make sure 
they pay their taxes. Because 
this is how we improve our 
system. Treasury operations 
are better; debt management 
is reasonably coordinated; 
at Deputy Governor level I 
myself get involved now; and 
there is greater fiscal-mone-
tary coordination not only for 
conducting macroeconomic 
policy but also to manage the 
day-to-day liquidity in the sys-
tem. That’s why we didn’t see 
erratic movements in interest 
rates. We also brought stabil-
ity into our wage structure. 
We had a very distorted 
wage structure in Sri Lanka 
prior to 2005. There were 
270-odd salary scales in the 
Government. We rationalised 
this to 20 odd salary scales 
and brought a new ratio. 
Within that we lined them up 

depending on the occupation-
al classification. There is still 
more to be done. As a result 
you must appreciate as much 
as this country did not have 
any terrorist incidents in the 
last five years, we didn’t have 
strikes or work stoppage. 
There are some habitual guys 
who anyway do some demon-
strations, that has to be there 
– even in Hong Kong there is 
something. Imagine a country 
maintaining sustained stability 
among the workforce for 10 
years? How much growth has 
been contributed? That’s who 
we should look at it.

We have introduced a 
new 10-year wage structure, 
maintaining the required 
characteristics among pro-
fessionals – our doctors, our 
professors, our engineers, 
etc. We didn’t do unmanage-
able things with the new wage 
structure. We have, within our 
limits, through consultative 
processes introduced a new 
wage structure – the President 
fortunately speaks to people 
from every trade union – to 
their satisfaction and to our 
satisfaction; ultimately we 
have a balance sheet to man-
age. 

Along with that, we have 
also addressed middle 
income country private sec-
tor wage structure. We can’t 
now have a workforce earning 
less than a dollar salary. It’s 
not proper. In 1970, it was ok. 
We had a huge labour surplus 
and we were a poor coun-
try. But now everything has 
improved; our work standards 
are good, our workforce is 
high quality, we don’t have 
child labour, we don’t have 
discrimination – a decent 
workforce. Therefore we have 
also addressed minimum 
wages. Although here I see 
more young and middle-aged 
people, a few people like me 
are getting old and you will 
also get old. Then we all drink 
wine. But for us to have wine, 
we must have a provident 
fund. Therefore we are raising 
the contribution. Singapore 
provident contribution is so 
high, that’s why they are sav-
ing. It is affordable because 
electricity cost is coming 
down, taxes are coming 
down, infrastructure is getting 
favourable, the lowest interest 
rate in my lifetime has come, 
the capital market is getting 
attractive – it’s no longer 
equity market and is now rais-
ing good debt. Therefore it’s 
time to have a comfortable 
adjustment.

Now we have a stable 
exchange rate regime and a 
stable interest rate regime. We 

need to consolidate. Some 
people are not happy with 
6-7% interest because they 
live on savings, so for elderly 
retirees we have created as 
12% interest rate for them. 
Now our country develop-
ment model is not the Indian 
development model, not the 
Singapore model. This is our 
own model. We are a caring 
society; we are sensitive to 
poor people, we are sensitive 
to women, children, disabled 
people, the elderly. Therefore 
the social security aspect of 
the Budget has been pro-
tected. That’s another impor-
tant aspect. We have also 
addressed massive-scale of 
ambitious targets. Our idea is 
not only surpassing $ 7,000 
per capita income, generating 
the lowest fiscal deficit and 
getting into below 65% debt, 
but also to make sure we have 
the best Human Development 
Index and a nation in South 
Asia for the first time and 
probably in entire Asia except 
for Japan free from maternal 
and child mortality. This is 
what we discussed with our 
medical profession and they 
felt these things should be our 
vision and we have addressed 
it. So we need to bring the 
technology, we need to bring 
access to proper health, 
bring these things across the 
country.

Education is very vital. Total 
reforms – Educational infra-
structure, quality of educa-
tion, subject material, teacher 
capabilities. These are 
long-term; you can’t quickly 
get these things organised. 
Therefore, we are transform-
ing the entire national educa-
tion infrastructure and the 
teachers, the material and 
everything will be modern in 
the next three years.

Many informal sector 
activities have also been rec-
ognised because economic 
activity must be generated. 
We need to create turnover 
and much more business 
here and through that cre-
ate a much more advance 
economy.

With those remarks, I once 
again thank Daily FT and the 
Colombo University Alumni 
Association and everybody 
else who invited me to speak 
to your before the Budget 
and also after the Budget 
and to explain the future 
and the thrust of this Budget 
beyond what revenue 
expenditure and various 
incidents plus or minuses 
and costs or benefits that 
may happen in the immedi-
ate future for a much more 
longer journey.

Continuation from page 11
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Brainstorming before Budget over Breakfast

With the participation of 
the Ministry of Finance 
and Ministry of Economic 
Development, the Daily FT 
in association with the MBA 
Alumni Association of the 
University of Colombo and 
strategic partnership from 
the Standard Chartered Bank 
on Thursday successfully 
conducted an open pre-budget 
private-public dialogue.  The 
breakfast forum saw nearly 
20 business leaders drawn 
from diverse economic and 
business sectors making their 
presentations as well as opening 
and closing remarks from 
Secretary to the two Ministries 
Dr. P.B. Jayasundera. Pix by 
Daminda Harsha Perera
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Special Report

REPRESENTATIVES of  key industries yes-
terday presented their main proposals for 
consideration at the 2018 pre- Budget forum 
organised by the Daily FT and the Colombo 
University MBA Alumni Association with 
Standard Chartered Bank as the Strategic 
Partner.  

Given below are excerpts of  their presen-
tations and key proposals. 

Gateway College 
Colombo Chairman  
Dr. Harsha Alles

If  you take the education 
sector, especially schools, 
Sri Lanka has about 10,000 
schools in the state sector and 
we used to have a very strong 
private sector, such as the church-linked 
schools, and the new emerging sector is the 
international schools and the private higher 
education institutions. 

According to the International Schools of  
Sri Lanka, which I founded and has the best 
established 24 schools, we have over 40,000 
students. Of  the non-members, I’m sure 
there are about another 200 schools. So our 
sector is substantial and in fact we are now 
bigger than the private schools where num-
bers are concerned. 

An important thing to remember is that 
students who attend international schools 
are not a burden to the Government at all; 
the Government does not spend one cent on 
them. Where the institutions are concerned 
everything is a cost to us, including land and 
buildings. Traditional private schools have 
taken many decades to get to this stage but 
we have to do this within our means.

 If  the Government wants to attract pro-
fessionals to return, encourage consult-
ants to be based here then they will look for 
schools like ours that follow the internation-
al curriculum. How the Government should 
look at this sector is to promote it as a hub, 
we have great potential. If  Malaysia could 
do it, I think at least in South Asia we should 
have the possibility to do this.   

Proposals     
Strengthen the people in education so 

that they establish partnerships with for-
eign organisations rather than directly 
going and inviting them to step up here. 

No VAT for education was positive but 
international schools pay all corporate taxes 
and we used to pay at 10% and now 14%, 
which is something you need to look into 
because these costs will be passed on to stu-
dents. The students at international schools 
come from a range of  social and economic 
backgrounds. 

People who want to genuinely invest in 
the industry and buy land, construct build-
ings, such people should be encouraged. A 
tax holiday or a similar measure would be 
welcome as they are long-term investors and 
would discourage people who get into the 
sector for a quick buck and rent buildings 
only to close down later.     

Akbar Brothers Ltd. 
Director Hussain 
Akbarally

The tea industry has been 
facing challenging times. On 
one hand the unrest in key 
markets such as the Middle 
East has resulted in reduced 
volumes and on the other adverse weather 
conditions at home have impacted produc-
tion. Unfortunately we can’t always pass on 
the increased costs to consumers, especially 
in these lower to middle income countries, 
which reduces our margins. 

One thing I would like to address as an 
industry is we pay Rs. 3.50 per kilo of  export-
ed tea as a Ceylon Tea promotion levy. This 
is a fantastic idea if  used wisely but so far 
about Rs. 6 billion has been kept in a fund 
and is in danger of  being used as a political 
tool. Ideally we should use this to give back 
to the tea industry.  Sri Lanka used to be the 
third largest tea producer in the world but 
has now slipped to fourth place and it is just a 
matter of  time before we slip to the fifth slot. 
The industry employs about one million peo-
ple and is a crucial employment generator.

Proposals 
Take Cess funds and give it back to plan-

tation companies to invest in replanting, 
new technologies and new investment as 
well as increase production levels.       

Cess funds to be used to develop new 
markets. Ceylon Tea is doing fantastically 
in countries such as China, East Asia and 
Russia. If  Sri Lanka can get funding, tea 
could be marketed more aggressively in 
these destinations. 

Lack of  consistent power is a challenge. 
Regular power cuts hamper production 
costs, especially for outstation factories 
where the company has had to spend on gen-
erators. Power cuts affect profit margins as 
generators cost four times as much as elec-
tricity provided by the national grid. Giving 
incentives in the Budget to build new power 
plants would benefit industries significantly.    

Spa Ceylon Director 
Shalin Balasuriya 

As a company that is tak-
ing its brand to international 
customers, we would like to 
draw attention to that pro-
cess. We are creating our own 
export channels by taking our 
brand out there and investing 
in it and building our brand for Sri Lanka. 
Support in doing that in any way would real-
ly help, especially with cost. 

Proposal 
Assistance in brand building. One key 

area is in trademark registration, where 
registration has to be done in several classes 
and although in Sri Lanka it’s fairly inex-
pensive when we go out we have found it is 
very costly and also the legal fees are very 
high. 

However, we are not allowed to account 
for it as an expense in the given year; we are 
only allowed to account for it as an expense 
10 years down the line. Therefore we would 
be grateful if  such expenses are allowed to 
be accounted for as expenses in the same 
year as they are made.     

Nawaloka Construction 
Company Ltd. Director 
Harshith Dharmadasa 

Proposals 
The establishment of  a 

real estate investment trust 
I believe is in the final stages 
of  Cabinet approval. If  this 
is expedited there will be a lot of  foreign 
investment that will be attracted to Sri 
Lanka. This will also enable local and small-
time investors to be part of  the growth. So if  
we can get this going it would really assist 
our sector to move forward. 

For the upcoming Budget, if  companies 
are doing advertising and marketing in 
foreign countries then provide them with 
incentives so that they will encourage them 
to seek foreign investment. This would also 
promote tourism. A tax exemption for this 
would be ideal if  it could be considered.  

Chairman Asia 
Securities Ltd.  
Dumith Fernando 

The underlying theme 
here is that we are trying 
to build a prosperous soci-
ety. Prosperity comes from 
earning more money and 
also investing and saving it better. I decided 
to take the approach of  talking about capi-
tal market development from the aspect of  
creating an entrepreneur’s paradise. I think 
in terms of  better funding for them and gen-
erating investment there is greater opportu-
nity. 

In addition, about 25% of  our popula-
tion is over the age of  55 and so savings and 
investment becomes a very important part 
of  how we maintain prosperity. 

Proposals 
Activation of  the Cess fund. In our 

industry there is a Cess fund of  about Rs. 2.6 
billion. Expect it to grow to Rs. 5 billion in 
four years. I think there are three ways this 
could be used but I’m sure there are other 
brilliant ideas as well. 

 One would be to create an education 

program where modules of  personal wealth 
management are taught to students. Unless 
you are in the commerce stream few people 
learn how to balance their accounts and that 
education gap leads to a reduced understand-
ing of  how to manage money later in life. 

Second would be to use funds to create 
better regulations for market surveillance, 
which has not really happened. This would 
increase trust in the capital markets and 
encourage more investors. 

Broaden finance education beyond 
school level. 

Provide tax-free incentives for listed 
share compensation for listed companies. 
This would make the market more attractive 
to foreign investors as it would create more 
liquidity. So one idea we would like to push 
is that 5%-10% of  a company can be given 
out as share-based compensation and that 
can be tax-free so there is an opportunity 
for both the company and recipients. The 
Government would also increase revenue 
through the Share Transaction Levy (STL).    

To make the capital market more vibrant, 
list appropriate state-owned enterprises 
(SOEs). Without doing this trying to push 
our capital market would be like trying to 
get a plane off  the ground without its wings. 
This is probably the single most important 
thing we need to develop our capital mar-
kets. We are not talking about privatisation 
here; we are talking about opportunities to 
raise capital. 

Orion City 
CEO Jeevan Gnanam

  Primary concentration 
of  improving entrepreneur-
ship by improving access to 
funding, access to markets 
and reducing cost of  failure. 
Funding challenges remain 
and tax systems are not very 
positive of  start-ups and the 
challenges they face. We also need to look at 
alternative types of  funding such as crowd 
funding but again the legislation needs to be 
changed around crowd funding. 

Proposals 
Create a system with tax incentives to 

promote start ups. Incentives for start-up 
investments should include provisions to 
avoid double taxation. 

Give Government grants for start-ups at 
the beginning for research and development 
as well as other needs. 

Access to markets is necessary as start-
ups struggle despite proposals to establish 
Sri Lanka as an IT hub. Incubation labs such 
as those established in Singapore to promote 
startups regionally as well are needed. 

Access to payment platforms such as 
Paypal and Stripe could also be a revenue 
earner for the Government. 

Cost of  failure is very high in Sri Lanka 
presently and needs to be adjusted as entre-
preneurs learn from experience and the 
current laws do not allow for risk-taking. 
Therefore propose adjustments similar to 
the US where under Chapter 11 businesses 
can close with limited impact.  

Kapruka.com Founder/CEO  
Dulith Herath 

We in the ecommerce 
industry have seen this 
increasing of  single pack-
ages that are coming into the 
country through Alibaba, 
eBay and other websites. 
Initially we thought this was 
small but it’s almost like 
products raining into the 
country and its going undetected because 
they arrive directly on to the doorstop. This 
means local traders in Pettah have to com-
pete with eBay, so we have to control this, 
in my view at the post office level for it to be 
fair trade and improve commerce in a com-
petitive way.   

Blue Mountain  
Group Chairman  
Hiran Hettiarachchi 

Proposals
 In the last Budget, pro-

posals were made for Real 
Estate Investment Trust 
(REIT) but this was not 
implemented. We propose the 
strengthening of  REIT and 
believe this would be positive for the indus-
try. 

We suggest strengthening the bond mar-
ket in Sri Lanka because real estate devel-
opers mainly depend on a few sources of  
funding. We propose the bond market is also 
strengthened along with the currency deriv-
atives market to increase funding sources. 

Suggest reinstating provisions to claim 
VAT from customers. As some projects in 
Sri Lanka are VAT-exempted we don’t have a 
level playing field. 

Propose licensing the developers. This 
is mainly to protect the customers as many 
small developers have entered the market 
without a strong financial background or 
experience and this has led to increased 
risk in standards. If  a small-scale developer 
makes an error then it can impact the whole 
sector. 

We would also like to request the 
Government’s blessing towards the real 
estate sector as certain officials represent-
ing the Government are spreading the fear 
factor to the market where that can create a 
negative impact on local and foreign inves-
tors.    

Aitken Spence Hotel Management 
Ltd. Director  
Stasshani ayawardana 

Proposals
 Since under the new 

Inland Revenue Act all pri-
vate sector companies will 
be taxed at one rate of  28% 
we request returning the 
Transfer Pricing Regulations. 

Request the Government to continue 
infrastructure projects. While there are cur-
rently strategic investment projects there 
are few companies classified for assistance 
under this category. One reason may be that 
the threshold of  investment is high and the 
approval process is very cumbersome and 
time-consuming. 

While we agree with the Government’s 
policy of  removing tax exemptions for large 
projects we think that upfront levies and 
taxes that are required to be paid for such 
projects even before construction commenc-
es be relooked at. In the case of  NBT and 
PAL the significant outlay at the start of  the 
project drives up costs by as much as 25%, 
which has to be incurred by the company 
before commercial operations begin. Since 
these infrastructure projects are of  national 
important we suggest that projects are eval-
uated and a selection is exempted from NBT 
and PAL in the project implementation stage 
to encourage investment in such projects. 

VAT and Customs Duty exemptions for 
capital investment in the refurbishment 
of  hotels with more than 100 rooms. As the 
Government is focusing on tourism develop-
ment Sri Lanka needs to refurbish its hotels 
at least every seven to ten years to provide 
a competitive advantage regionally. At pre-
sent VAT deferments are not granted even 

though proposed refurbishment adds up to 
substantial amounts. In most cases these are 
large resorts, which can be as much as the 
cost of  construction of  a small new hotel or 
boutique hotel at times, and these are given 
exemptions under the BOI. These could be 
considered as a new investment. We pro-
pose that the Customs Duty be deferred for 
refurbishment projects with more than 100 
rooms, thereby reducing the tax burden on 
companies.  

Mclarens Group Ltd. Joint 
Managing Director Shehara 
Jayawardena

Proposals 
As Sri Lanka has ambi-

tions to be a maritime hub it 
would be imperative that all 
the shipping and shipping-
related services are provided 
at regionally competitive 
rates. This would include 
bunkering and a host of  other services. In 
Singapore at any given time there are 6,000 
ships in anchorage simply to avail of  the 
services provided at the port. Sri Lanka can 
easily attract a percentage of  this market. 
So we need to provide the regulatory frame-
work for this sector, which includes de-regu-
larisation. 

Proper clarification of  shipping related 
services so that they are eligible to be given 
concessions. 

With introduction of  NBT Act want clar-
ity of  shipping and related services. If  this 
2% on the turnover is brought in it will act 
as a deterrent. 

OREL Corporation Ltd. Managing 
Director Kushan Kodituwakku  

Proposals 
Promote invoicing soft-

ware so that in real time a 
company can know if  its 
transactions. 

Get  Inland Revenue 
Department assessors to be 
your partners so that they 
can assist to grow the busi-
ness and change the dynamics of  how 
people would view the Inland Revenue 
Department. 

Because of  the regulatory measures of  
the Government, companies have to recruit 
more staff. For example we have about 20 

people in our Accounts Department where-
as a company in the UK may have two. As 
the Government moves forward to sign Free 
Trade Agreements (FTAs) we need to also 
adjust these regulatory frameworks so that 
companies can become more streamlined 
and competitive. Would like to see things 
become simplified. 

ACL Cables Plc Managing Director 
Suren Madanayake  

Proposals 
SVAT collection difficult 

and should be reconsidered. 
Evaluation for Govt. ten-

ders needs to be consistent. 
Currently different tender 
committees employ differ-
ent methods. Would like to 
see the same criteria applied to enable more 
consistency.

Some local exporters only export about 
20% and it used to come under a preferen-
tial tax rate, which has been taken out in the 
new Inland Revenue Act. Consider possibil-
ity of  reinstating that provision.  

Encourage backward integration with 
incentives and possible preferential duty 
rates for primary raw materials. 

Diesel and Motor Engineering  
Plc General Manager  
Rajeev Pandithage 

As a developing country 
we need mobility to grow and 
with new roads and highways 
coming up this sector has 
become very important. 

Proposals 
Unlike other countries 

we have a very high tax regime, which is 
necessary, but my suggestion is to have a 
stable tax regime. We have changed our tax 
systems more than 20 times in the last four 
years. 

One other factor is the issue of  valua-
tions, which is arbitrary, and can have sig-
nificant impact on the end price. Therefore 
the genuine importer of  a vehicle is not 
competitive in the real market. 

In the goods transfer segment Sri Lanka 
imports trucks that are over ten years old. 
The long-term implications are that vehicles 
that are written off  as unfit for the road in 
other countries end up in Sri Lanka. So Sri 

Lanka should not be a dumping ground for 
old vehicles, especially in the goods trans-
port sector. 

Sustainable view on electric vehicles. It 
is the future but need to look at a long-term 
plan for importing these vehicles. 

Disposal of  old vehicles could be more 
efficient if  plans can be approved to strip 
down vehicles and there are many countries 
that would accept our properly sorted gar-
bage. Would make most of  our re-export and 
earn revenue for the country.    

Access International Ltd. Director 
Shamal Perera 

Proposals 
We find that most of  our 

best qualified professionals 
are leaving the country for 
better opportunities overseas. 
Going back to the 1980s and 
1990s, Sri Lanka had a system 
where first time homeowners 
could get their mortgage deducted against 
their tax. A lot of  private sector employees 
used this method to their advantage and it 
stopped a lot of  brain drain from happening. 
I believe that if  we can ease these expenses 
then we can stop people from buying cars 
with their first salary and go for buying 
houses. This in return would promote the 
real estate, retail and banking businesses as 
well. So we suggest the Government recon-
siders giving incentives to first time home 
buyers.    

In the private health sector there is 
excess capacity and there is excess demand 
in the Government sector. To my under-
standing there is severe down time in health-
care machines and the main objective of  
the government healthcare system is not to 
maintain medical equipment but to provide 
health services. I’m happy to understand a 
Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Unit has 
been established but I’m sad to say in regard 
to the health sector no one in the Health 
Ministry has been told such an initiative has 
been established. So proper coordination 
between the ministry and PPP Unit has to be 
established. 

Medical professionals earn up to 80% 
of  the cost of  private hospitals and with the 
introduction of  VAT it is a very simple cal-
culation on the earnings of  medical profes-
sionals but still the Government struggles to 
understand how much they earn compared 
to how much they declare. I’m not trying to 

ruffle anyone’s feathers but I’m just giving 
my suggestion on how we can increase our 
revenue.       

DFCC Bank Plc  
CEO Lakshman Silva 

Proposals 
Rationalisation of  taxes 

is required. Currently banks 
directly and indirectly pay 
as much as 40% or more of  
taxes. We are required to be 
rated but when it comes to 
some of  the taxes there is 
no differentiation between the banks on 
their ratings. Over the last five or six years 
banks are paying a crop insurance levy 
that had been introduced six years ago but 
we have not benefitted from it. In addition, 
deposit insurance was introduced when 
finance companies went through a troubled 
period and now all the banks, regardless 
of  their ratings, all these payments have to 
be made. This is one of  the key things the 
Government can look at when rationalising 
tax policy moving forward. 

We are in doubt about the tax levies to 
come up in the statutory investments we 
are expected to make with the Central Bank. 
Treasury Bills and bonds we are not sure 
of  the applicable rates because of  the infor-
mation we have received with the rate to be 
increased to 14% but whether that is deduct-
able tax or whether it will be a pay on top of  
taxes applicable on general income. If  that 
duplication happens, naturally there will be 
an impact on the market. 

Banks have actively participated in 
Sri Lanka development bonds and interest 
earned through that was exempted so far 
going forward it is not known yet what the 
situation will be. We would like this issue 
addressed. 

Renuka Hotels Ltd. 
Joint Managing 
Director Shibani 
Thambaiyah 

Proposals 

High direct and indirect 
taxes faced by the industry 
are challenging. Sri Lanka 
has the highest total outflow of  taxes 
on top line revenue in the region, which 
means Sri Lanka outprices itself  in the 
region and we need help to look into this. 

Sri Lanka’s hotel and restaurant indus-
try accounts for 6% of  the total VAT col-
lected, which is the third largest after the 
banking and insurance industries. So it 
would be good for the Government to grant 
concessions for the industry by grant-
ing concessions by reconsidering the tax 
structure. 

Regulation needed for the informal 
sector, which is as high as 50%. We under-
stand that the Government is already 
attempting to bring these establishments 
into the tax net. We urge you to look into 
this as it would create a level playing field. 
Also propose collecting a flat tax rate from 
all unregistered establishments, which is 
also done regionally.  

Sunshine Holding Plc 
Director  
Shyam Sathasivam 

Proposals 
Address the lack of  a 

world-class quality assur-
ance lab. Even though dis-
cussions have been around 
for a long time, the resources 
and impetus from the Government have 
been absent. A lot of  pharmaceutical prod-
ucts can be tested in this way and it would 
also ensure standards. Pharmaceutical 
drugs worth about Rs. 40 billion make 
their way to Sri Lanka every year and 
some of  this is substandard and this can 
be handled efficiently. We propose that 
this be set up as a public-private partner-
ship where the private sector sets it up 
and the Government can use the services. 
This can be done across the board and the 
Government can charge companies for 
using this. There is much public enthu-
siasm for this but the mechanism is still 

missing. Moreover this cannot be done 
only by the Government because ensuring 
world-class expertise and standards cannot 
be done by the State alone. We can work 
with the ASEAN region and if  we want to 
export drugs then we have to meet interna-
tional standards. 

Introduce healthcare vouchers so that 
all citizens are given access to healthcare 
but the Government does not have to per-
form all those services. 

In tea, if  we are going to build a large 
export base then we need to build brands. 
However, local companies may not have 
the resources so I see things like what 
Fonterra has done, which is gathering a 
large number of  producers into one corpo-
rate conglomerate that can go outside the 
country and build. Either we have to go out 
and buy brands or the government should 
go out and buy this and support this pro-
cess. The State needs to back this process 
rather than letting the private sector line 
up at a public bank. We need support not so 
much funding.

WSO2 CEO and Chief 
Architect Sanjiva 
Weerawarana  

Proposals 
The brain drain is a 

severe problem. If  it were 
up to me I would eliminate 
all taxes and rationalise 
all vehicle taxes once and for all because 
this is a key aspiration of  all people. It is 
important for the Government to focus on 
a stable environment for people to live in. 
We need to address ways to attract people 
back but first we need to stop them from 
leaving. 

The Government almost always insists 
on buying foreign software and it does it 
indirectly by saying it should have high 
revenue to bid for a specific tender. Most 
software companies don’t have such reve-
nues. So the government should make this 
a place where local companies get a chance 
to sell their products to the Government 
and give incentives to do so because for-
eign companies pay Sri Lankan companies 
to make systems. 

Expo Lanka Freight 
Ltd. Managing 
Director Saif Yusoof  

Digitalisation is  very 
important and has to be a 
fundamental part of  the 
Government’s vision. This 
could change everything and 
all sectors can be revolutionised because 
what we require now is speed. Create a 
Government portal that would open digi-
talisation to the consumers and public. 
Have a clean slate plan for education, 
police or anything you can name. In places 
like Bali people are flying in from around 
the world to work, we can create such 
ecosystems here as well by bringing this 
new youth, which would give exponential 
growth.   

Astron Ltd. Director/COO  
Ross De Zilwa

Proposals 
Request PAL is waived on 

active raw materials, which 
are imported for the domes-
tic manufacture of  pharma-
ceuticals. These cannot be 
used for anything else and 
would enable us to be more 
competitive when it comes to export prices 
and imported similar pharmaceuticals to 
not have PAL or other taxes on them. This 
places domestic producers at a disadvan-
tage against similar imported products. 

Request that domestic pharmaceuticals 
be exempt from price control. 

In 2014 several pharmaceutical com-
panies entered into a buy-back agreement 
with the Health Ministry through tenders. 
We would like to request formalisation of  
this agreement and it be extended for a fur-
ther five years and additional products that 
we supply be added onto the list and contin-
ued till 2024.     

Pix by Upul Abayasekara

Host of new and progressive 
ideas from next generation 
of business leaders at Daily 
FT-Colombo Uni. MBA  
Alumni Association 2018  
Pre-Budget Brainstorm  
with Finance Ministry

Young leaders show the way for 2018 Budget
BY UDITHA JAYASINGHE 

TAKING on board proposals 
from the private sector, Finance 
Minister Mangala Samaraweera 
and State Minister of Finance 
Eran Wickramaratne yesterday 
acknowledged concerns and 
growth plans from companies and 
pledged to continue engagement 
on key points. 

Speaking at the 2018 pre- 
Budget forum organised by 
the Daily FT and the Colombo 
University MBA Alumni 
Association, with Standard 
Chartered Bank serving as the 
Strategic Partner, State Minister 
of Finance Eran Wickramaratne 
responded candidly to the propos-
als and challenges presented by 
the private sector. In relation to 
requests for tax concessions and 
exemptions, he emphasised that 
the Government remains commit-
ted to maintaining the stipulations 
in the latest Inland Revenue Act.   

“We have only one tax rate and 
that is 28%. The Bill is an effort to 
go into a more rules-based system 
rather than having to sit outside 

Mangala Samaraweera’s office. 
This is the change. A concession-
ary rate of 14% is applied because 
there are no zeros in the system 
and therefore this is the lowest 
rate. We have a few sectors such 
as agriculture, exports and educa-
tion at 14% and we can argue why 
some are in it and others are not.  
But it is a debate and it has been 
settled in this particular way.” 

Raising capital 
Capital investment allowance is 

one way forward, he suggested, 
that would allow for the recovery 
of investment. He also said that 
regarding tea, Sri Lanka has a 
long-term problem that would 
need greater attention and deeper 
policies but acknowledged the 
Government does not want to see 
the industry deteriorate further. 

However, he noted that 
concerns over Cess would be 
addressed, and the discussion 
had already begun. On trademark 
costs of registration, the State 
Minister called for a note that 
would be further explored by the 
ministry. 

“We fully take on board the 
issue of state-owned enterprises 
(SOEs). Here again you men-
tioned the banks and banks are 
capital short. So there is no way 
forward apart from raising capital 
and this is essential for growth. 

If private banks raise capital and 
expand then the state banks will 
inevitably lose market share. If 
they are to compete, the state 
banks need to raise capital. The 
Government Budget is con-
strained and so will not be able 
invest in State banks. So please 
help to get this message across. 
One way is to focus on their core 
businesses,” he said, predicting 
that the local sector will adjust 
along international trends.        

He conceded that legislation 
would take time for startups, 
digitisation, access to payment 
systems, booking platforms and 
incubation labs but polices for all 
these are being considered by 
the Government. “It’s on our list 
because we are very keen to levy 
taxes,” he said, eliciting laughter 
from the audience. Discussions 
on bankruptcy laws have also 
resulted in a “white paper” and the 
Finance Ministry will get involved 

to see that it is going in the right 
direction. 

“The Budget is not the 
Government’s big policy state-
ment. The Budget is a part of the 
Government’s policy,” he added. 

Institutional 
independence 

On real estate he acknowl-
edged industry concerns but 
insisted that as the Central Bank 
is an independent institution the 

Government could not dictate 
what it could or could not say.

“If the Central Bank is making 
statements then that is because 
they have reason to do so. We 
have a responsibility towards the 
public and we cannot let a situa-
tion like what happened in 2008 
and 2009 or in Malaysia happen 
again and then later yell at insti-
tutions for not letting their mes-
sage be known. I, as a part of the 
Government, may also not like 

some of the things that are said but 
I need to say that in defence of the 
statement made,” he stressed.       

Tourism remains a favoured 
sector, Wickramaratne assured, 
noting that the country continues 
to be dependent on its revenue 
but said debates on Airbnb and 
other booking platforms need to be 
within the industry and once a con-
sensus was reached, should tell 
the Government what steps to take. 
The Government would look to 
“creatively tax” booking platforms.     

Positive sentiments: SCB
Standard Chartered Bank CEO 

Jim McCabe was also upbeat 
about Sri Lanka’s prospects for 
growth and reforms. 

“I believe we are all aware of 
the precarious state of the coun-
try’s public finances, which this 
Government has inherited. But 
things are looking up; the deficit 
is narrowing, the tax to GDP ratio 
is reducing, recent regulation 
has been passed to broaden the 
tax net, reserves have improved 
and several high-profile PPPs are 
underway. We can expect key FTAs 
over the next few months that will 
unleash a faster pace of growth.” 

“The time is now to build a 
strong working partnership 
between the private and public 
sector so that in all aspects the 
economy and society can partici-

pate in the improving trend. This 
will require significant give-and-
take with dialogue and genuine 
trust between all parties. The 
country’s annual Budget can 
be that instrument to engender 
improved relations in many sec-
tors of this economy. I believe we 
can all agree that the past two 
Budget processes created much 
expectation but also disappointed, 
possibly due to their desire to 
encompass too much change all at 
once. My recommendation would 
be to set our sights on fewer key 
issues and then ride that sense 
of achievement into the following 
years.”

He noted that economists pro-
jected Sri Lanka to grow in the New 
Year with stronger macroeconomic 
indicators including moderate infla-
tion and reduction of private sector 
credit growth to 15% along with 
stronger reserves and better fiscal 
consolidation. This will over time 
reduce debt, he said, but acknowl-
edged that in the short term Sri 
Lanka would have to tackle wide 
trade deficits and work to attract 
investment. He also called on the 
private sector to be more aware of 
the developments internationally 
and regionally as well as work to 
improve connections so that it is 
better positioned to deal with the 
challenges and opportunities avail-
able.       

GOVT. LENDS EAR TO PRIVATE SECTOR WISH LIST FOR NEXT BUDGET 
Mangala and Eran keen to 
continue engagement as 
clarifications, expansion 
plans and ideas flow from 
stakeholders 

Finance Minister Mangala Samaraweera speaks at the Daily FT-Colombo University MBA Alumni Association organised 2018 Pre-Budget Forum at 
the Hilton Colombo. Others from left MBA Alumni Association President Irshan Jayah, Daily FT Editor Nisthar Cassim, State Minister of Finance Eran 
Wickramaratne and forum's strategic partner Standard Chartered Bank Sri Lanka CEO Jim McCabe

Press Coverage - AGM 2014

Press Coverage - AGM 2019 MBA-Night 2017

Press Coverage - Pre-Budget 2017

Press Coverage - Pre-Budget 2012

Press Coverage - Post Budget 2015

Press Coverage 2013
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L0001  Shirley  Jayakody

L0002  Rohantha Senevirathne

L0003  Ranjith Noel Bopearatchy

L0004  Chris  Corea

L0005  Frank Nelfred Reginald Fernando

L0006  Shanthikumar R Sadanandan 

L0007  K U  Pushpakumara

L0008  Anuradha Tennakoon

L0009  Keren Stephen

L0010  A Harsha Chanaka  Ellawala

L0011 S Zeeniya Rasheed

L0012 K V D Sarath Kumarasinghe

L0013 Dedigama Dharmadasa

L0014 Nawaneela Mangalasiri De Mel  De Mel

L0015 Mahanama Kumara Bandara Ralapanawa

L0016 Athula Nanayakkara

L0017 Dileeni Achala Dias

L0018 Stuart Anthony  Chapman

L0019 Naveen Sooriyarachchi

L0020  W M Jayawardhane

L0021 Ranil I Senaratna

L0022  Alex Vincent Samararathne

L0023  Tuan Roshan  Cassim

L0024  Upali  Ratnayake

L0025  R Nadarajah

L0026  E Neil Rohan I Perera

L0027  Deepthi Hewageegana

L0028  Ravi Fernando

L0029  Manoraj  Navarathnarajah (Deceased)

L0030  Palitha S Maliyadeva Muthukuda

L0031 M D Rohan Weerawansa Chandrasena

L0032  Lalith Perera

L0033  P Suchintha S Perera

L0034  Dilshan R Hettiarachchi

L0035  Senake Wijesinghe

L0036  Lalindra H Roschen Perera

L0037  E M C Sriyamal Gamage

L0038  L M Kumarapeli

L0039  G A D Rohan Senevirathne

L0040  Geetha Selvaretnam

L0041 W A N Kalyani Rodrigo

L0042  Sanjaya V Samararatne

L0043  Gayathri Padmasekera

L0044  Danister Thudellage

L0045  Harsha Wickramasinghe

L0046  K K A Chandana Samarasinghe

L0047  Amalene Ranjula Nilaweera

L0048  Rajarathnam Pathmaranjan

L0049  Mahesh Vipula  Jayasinghe

L0050  V C Manone Perera

L0051 B A C Fernando

L0052  Kanthappu Elangko

L0053  Gamunu Gunasumana

L0054  Harshitha Wannigama Gunaratna

L0055  P T Peter C Gomes

L0056  Lalith Chandrakumara Weerathunga

L0057  N Priyantha Perera

L0058  Sarath Lakshman W Dissanayake

L0059  Sureshkumar Suppiah

L0060  W  M S Kumara Wasala

L0061 W W Jude Chrishantha  Fernando

L0062  S G M Muthuramalingam Ramasubbu

L0063  Thanbiah Govinthadas

L0064  Thilak D  Weerasinghe

L0065  Sarath S B Hewage

L0066  Galith Subaseela

L0067  A Hilmi Cader

L0068  Mahabaduge Prasad Fernando  Jayasuriya

L0069  E Nilanthi Renuka Silva

L0070  Nishan Chandana Mahanama

L0071 Arumapurage Sumantha Indrajith Fernando

L0072  K D Anusha Wijeguneratne

L0073  Tania Marian Fernando

L0074  Amala Namali Kumari Heengama

L0075  M Gamunu Priyantha Bandara Jayasundara

L0076  H Dayana Hemamala Karunasekara

L0077  Chandana Weerasooriya

L0078  Devasri Muthugala

L0079  Shalutha Athauda

L0080  Hilary Fernando

L0081 Ranjith Herman Jayawardena

L0082  Kapila Welmillage

L0083  Kumudini  Welmillage

L0084  K M Premaratne

L0085  Gamage Deepthi Nishantha  Amaratunga

L0086  Sidath Edirisinghe

L0087  Thilak Rathnapriya Gunatunga

L0088  Noel Yahampath

L0089  Nades Nadeswaran

L0090  E Damitha Kumarasinghe

L0091 Deepthi Neelapani  Perera

L0092  Hewa Paththinineg Sisirani Deepthika Siritunga

L0093  N Gamage Mahinda

L0094  Mohamed Ismail Abdul Hassan

L0095  Upali Sunil Arambewela

L0096  Lasantha Perera Jayatilaka

L0097  Gerard Shirantha Perera

L0098  Darshan Gayathral  Perera
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Member 

ID No            Full Name
Member  

ID No            Full Name

L0099  

L0100  Harshini Halangode

L0101 Lohitha Sanjeeva Karunasekera

L0102 Kamal Hemantha Muthukuda

L0103 Chaminda Pathmalal Abayawickrama

L0104 Chandra Bernard Pathberiya

L0105 Srinath Kapila Kumara Hettihamu

L0106 Nishani Eranga De Zoysa

L0107 H A D Wasantha Piyasiri Hettiarachchi

L0108 Wickum Chandana Weerabahu

L0109 K Priyanganie Damayanthi Fernando

L0110 Ruwan Hewapathirana

L0111 Malik Chamindri Perera

L0112 Don Anton Shirantha Dehipitiarachchi

L0113 Kavinda Menaka Lakshana De Zoysa

L0114 Razmi Marzook

L0115 M K Nayanajith Udayakumara  De Silva

L0116 J M Prabhath Shantha  Kaushallya

L0117 R L Subhash Anuruddha Rajapakse

L0118 M H Zahir Mohamed Marzook

L0119 Nalaka Manjula Morugama

L0120 H H Chinthaka De Silva

L0121 Reginold Lasantha Senaka Senaratne

L0122 Murale Nadarajah

L0123 Pavithra Sanjeewani Siriwardhane

L0124 Nuwani Upeksha Amaratunga

L0125 Champika Viraj Kumar Periyapperuma

L0126 Ananda Senaviratne

L0127 Rohitha Rajaratne

L0128 Getawakandage Sudath Kumar

L0129 Nelun Shirani Malinee Senanayake

L0130 Tissa Ravinda Perera

L0131 Herath Bandage Keerthirathna

L0132 Chanaka Nalindra Howpe Liyanage

L0133 Chetiya Bopearatchy

L0134 Kaluharage Gamini Hemantha De Silva

L0135 Fathima Rushdha Jawzi

L0136 Thurairajah Thivakaran

L0137 Bomullage Mudith Prasanna Somaratna

L0138 U H D Pathmasiri

L0139 Janaki Siriwardana

L0140 Kaushan  Jayaratne

L0141 Sumudhu Jayathilake

L0142 Dushyantha Rodrigo

L0143 Devika Gunasekara

L0144 Sandun Wickramasinghe

L0145 Ajith Dhammika  Jayasekera

L0146 Nayana Prasad Peiris

L0147 P K Sumudu Swarnarekha Kulasuriya

L0148 Manohari Prasadini  Abeyesekera

L0149 Lassana Weeratunga

L0150 Joseph Navin De Croos

L0151 Pandithavidana Anuruddha Goonawardena

L0152 Waruna Bandara Jayathilaka

L0153 Niranjith Anthony Thusitha  De Silva

L0154 Vidanalage Nirmala Ranmalie Fernando

L0155 Sandya Sriyani Amaratunga

L0156 Heethaka Pubudu Priyadarshanie  De Zoysa

L0157 Tiran S Gunarathna

L0158 W A  Thusitha Prabhath Gunaratne

L0159 Nicholas E L W Jayasekera

L0160 Panagodage Sirimal Ranjith Fernando

L0161 Delrukshi Varuni Egodage

L0162 Chandana Ranathunga

L0163 Joseph Jeyaretnam

L0164 Upul Bandara Angammana

L0165 Chaminda Ranna Pathirana

L0166 Vidanagamage Hemantha  Wickramaratne

L0167 Pihilla Watta Gedara Indika Tennakoon

L0168 Thusith Chaminda Gunawarnasuriya

L0169 Pathmani Mangalika  De Silva

L0170 P A Jude Palitha K  Perera

L0171 Prasad Galhena

L0172 Saneth Gamage

L0173 Tittagalla Gamage Chanaka Edirisooriya

L0174 Ramanth Atukorale  Atukorale

L0175 Gajadeera Arachchige Bimal Iroshan Silva

L0176 S R Prabath Sudasinghe

L0177 S P Jayani Indika Senanayake

L0178 Dhilmini Kumeri  Palipane

L0179 Jina Rashmi Daluwatta

L0180 G D Padman Mendis

L0181 Neville Ruwanpathirana

L0182 Maddewatte Udaya Senarath Gamage

L0183 Liyanage Gnanawardena Perera

L0184 Dulith Sanjeewa Gurusinghe

L0185 Thusitha Perera

L0186 Chandana Hemantha Thebuwena

L0187 Abdul Cader Mohamed Irzan

L0188 W L C Coonghe

L0189 Shamilal Aransaka  Wijeyawardena

L0190 S A M Gamage

L0191 N P E Jayasooriya

L0192 W J M Wanigasekera

L0193 Wasantha Sanjeewa Sooriyarachchi

L0194 T A C A Kulatilake

L0195 Gayantha Lakprasanga Weerakoon

L0196 Amaranayakage Chaminda Dabare
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L0197 Uthpala Kumara

L0198 R K U I Ranaweera

L0199 H J O Silva

L0200  L M A Gunawardena

L0201 Indujeeva Keerthilal Peiris

L0202  P T Ranil Shanaka Sugathadasa

L0203  H M Priyantha Bandara  Herath

L0204  Sivalingam Sritharan

L0205  Ruwan Krishantha Rajapakse

L0206  Rienzi Kolitha Sri Nissanka

L0207  Shanil Gayan Jayasekera

L0208  D L Prasath Manjula Rathnasinghe

L0209  Wasantha Nihal K P Kankanamge

L0210 Chandana Bamunusinghe Liyanage

L0211 Nilmini Dharshika Rajapakse

L0212 A A C S L Aluthgama

L0213 Thushara Deepal Priyadarshana Aratchige

L0214 Bhoopal Mahendra Vithanage Dahanayake

L0215 P G Lalith  Sumanasiri

L0216 Joseph Roshan Perera

L0217 M D I S Delgoda

L0218 N H Gamage

L0219 B M G Jayantha Bandara

L0220  Shiromal Cooray

L0221 Himal Mahesh Weerasekara

L0222  Gajendra Liyanaarachchi

L0223  Chandrika H Liyanage

L0224  Kumudinie Hewavitharanage

L0225  Rasika Sampath Berugoda

L0226  Tharaka Dadagamuwa

L0227  Gayani Swineetha Perera

L0228  Anoma Siriwardena

L0229  Ranjith  Kodituwakku

L0230  Sandeepani Kodituwakku

L0231 M Shirley Gunawardhana

L0232  Udaya Rasantha Chandratileka

L0233  Suneth Jayawardena

L0234  Supramaniam Sabesan

L0235  Nishantha Kalansuriya

L0236  Kankanige Rashima Nilmini Perera

L0237  Chamith Manjula Kumara Dheerasinghe

L0238  N M Mohamed Fazal

L0239  Lushantha Iresh Ranasinghe

L0240  Duminda Gunasinghe

L0241 T H Chandana De Silva Wimalasena

L0242  W K Surangana Sarathchandra

L0243  K M G Vajira Kariyawasam

L0244  Pius Paiva

L0245  Suneth Devinda Kotuthenne

L0246  D K Priyantha  Upuljith Gunathilake

L0247  W L R R Kalhara

L0248  Dharani Thavalingam

L0249  Asanka Samanmali  Gunashinhe

L0250  Shanaka Wijeweera

L0251 Nandeeka Rajapakse

L0252  Upamali Amarakoon

L0253  Ramachandra Sarma  Mahalingam

L0254  Sellam Ambalavanar

L0255  Madura  Prabhashin Liyanarachchi

L0256  Induka Lalinda Senanayake

L0257  W A S Amanthi Motha

L0258  Hewawasam Gamage Priyantha Ajith Gamage

L0259  W Dulani Prasanga Nissanka

L0260  Shantharuby Buvanendra

L0261 Herraluge Indika Krishantha Perera

L0262  Sumudu Udayanga Hettiarachchi

L0263  Prasantha DE Silva

L0264  Sujeewa Kumarapperuma

L0265  Tharuka Dinendra De Silva

L0266  Wasantha Pradeep Kolombaarchi

L0267  Niranga Anurudha  Weliwita

L0268  M Lasintha Manil  Ferdinando

L0269  Hemantha Uditha Kumara Hettiarachchige

L0270  Melvin Raphel Kurukulasuriya

L0271 Senerath Kiriwaththtuduwage

L0272  W Chandana Deepthi Fonseka

L0273  Kumuduni Mallicachchige

L0274  W G Kusumalatha

L0275  Amila Hendahewa

L0276  H V Pahan Prasanga

L0277 Nilmini Sanjeevanie Dasanayeka

L0278  Mampege Ranjith  Wasantha

L0279  M  A Ruwan Sammit Manchanayake

L0280  Saranga  Wijeyarathne

L0281 Ellawala Liyanage Rohana Anura  Ellawala

L0282  Roshan Fernando

L0283  U Janaka Palinda Senarathne

L0284  Lakmini Niwanthi De Silva

L0285  Damian Amal Cabraal

L0286  Wickramasinghage Sumudithe Saman Piyasinghe

L0287  Chandima Udaya Priyanga  Samarasinghe

L0288  Kahandawala Arachchige Jagath Nishantha

L0289  Herath Mudiyanselage Anil Kumara Herath

L0290  Attanayaka Mudiyanselage Maithree  Priyanwada

L0291 Rohan Marino Adrian Tennakoon

L0292  Kahawe Guruge Isuru Wijesinghe

L0293  Wattage Darshana Udayanga Perera

L0294  Udenie Thilakaratna
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L0295  B M Kasun Madhawa Balasooriya

L0296  Kulappu Thanthrige  Supeshala

L0297  M B Chamara Muditha Kalum Gunasekera

L0298  Aruna Irosh Somasiri

L0299  Gamini Bambaradeniya

L0300  Dammika Gamini Premerkumara  Ekanayake

L0301 Charmarie  Maalge

L0302  Noor Mohamed Hassan  Mubarak

L0303  Joseph  Emilrajan

L0304  Don Shirley Cleetus Mallawaarachchi

L0305  Ajith Manoj  Weeraman

L0306  Jithmi Harshika Panagoda

L0307  Punitha Indumathi Dahanayake

L0308  Maas Irshan Niyas  Jayah

L0309  Kahandawala Punya Chandani

L0310 K A Hemasiri Kumara Karunanayake

L0311 Niroshan Mapatuna

L0312 Sobath Wijetunge

L0313 Manimelwadu Neranjan Panduka De Silva Jayatilake

L0314 Biyanwalage Maneesha Jinadasa

L0315 Anthony J Shirley Mahendra

L0316 Maha Acharige Raneeth Suranga Jayaratne

L0317 Pathirannahelage Janani Madhuka Karunanayake

L0318 Ramesh Dushmantha Abeywickrama

L0319 Udunuwarage Rashmi Niranthi  Gunawardena

L0320  Chamara Dhammika Wijeratne

L0321 Wijemuni  Ajith Chanaka De Silva

L0322  Baskaran  Annalingam

L0323  Heshani Menaka  Alutwatte

L0324  R M Lalith Nandana Priyathissa

L0325  Thusitha Wickramasinghe

L0326  Winodani Dhammika Rangani Upasena

L0327  Balapuwaduge Judith Sriyonie Mendis

L0328  Rajasinghe Hetti Arachchige Sanjeewa Rajasinghe

L0329  H A Uditha Shamali Wijegunawardhana

L0330  Kodithuwakku Kankanamge Senajith Dasanayake

L0331 Chathura Randike  Siyambalapitiya

L0332  Udual Moteue Deepasik Maduwanthie Seneviratne

L0333  Rekha M P Hewlaiyananage

L0334  Don Gamini Wickrama Kalubowila

L0335  G K D D C  Bandara

L0336  T M Dilum Lasith Nanayakkara De Silva

L0337  T R Sampath Dharmarathne

L0338  Channa Ariyasena

L0339  Ihala Baruwattegedera Ruwan Rohitha Bandara

L0340  Kariyakarawanage Benston Peter Fernando

L0341 Joseph Laksiri Ruwan Wijeratne

L0342  Sujeewani Indima Wijeratne

L0343  Thelge Chathura Madushan Peiris

L0344  Thisanthi Kaluarachchi

L0345  Nishan Indika Abeysooriyaarachchi

L0346  Liyana Ralalage Laksiri Asoka Liyanage

L0347  Samitha Jayakody

L0348  Waruna Pradeepa Attanayaka

L0349  Ranga Indika  Ratnayake

L0350  Ottilie  Win

L0351 Indika Abeysiri

L0352  W R Cholitha Dharmabandu Wijawardana

L0353  Neranjan Kalinga Abeysooriyaarachchi

L0354  Chandika Jananath Nettasinghe

L0355  Boshan Harshana Dayaratne

L0356  Nemantha Neranjan  Hatharasinghe

L0357  Uduwanage Thilina Nuwan  Perera

L0358  Harsha  Samaranayake

L0359  Laddu Somadasa Silva

L0360  Prasanna Ruwan  Kariyawasam

L0361 Katheesh kandasamy

L0362  Shantha Priyanath Kithsiri  Jayakody

L0363  Amila Surangi Goonawardane

L0364  Rapti Indira Silva

L0365  Nissansala Nawarathne

L0366  Manori Priadarshani Emmanuel

L0367  Sugunatheeran  Thananchayan

L0368  Samantha  Galagama

L0369  Magalage Samantha Kumudu Kumara Perera

L0370  Yalagamage Shanaka Damith Wijesinghe

L0371 Damindra Ranjan Dissabandara

L0372  Lalith Withana

L0373  S Harsha Kapilarathna

L0374  Don Chaminda Kaushalya Rajapaksha Pathirag

L0375  Deshappriya Anoma Priyadarshani Premarathna

L0376  Eranda Wishanake  Weerakoon

L0377 Sujeewa  Jayasinghe

L0378  Iresha Vajiramali Kulatilaka

L0379  Suresh Kingsly  Tissaaratchy

L0380  Nipul  Weeraratne

L0381 Lushan Nalinda  Abesekara

L0382  Susantha  Mallawa Arachchi

L0383  Shyamalee Nisansala Kumari Paranayapa

L0384  Sarada Chandima  Alutwala

L0385  Damitha Jayawardana

L0386  Imani Angeline  Perera

L0387  Suren Parakrama  Nanayakkara

L0388  Thisara Jeevana  Hewapathirana

L0389  Mangala  Abeysekara

L0390  Dimuthu Thushara Ratnasiri Andrahennedhy

L0391 S M A D S Hiranya Sammandapperuma

L0392  Mahesh Nishantha  Athukorale

L0393  H A Lalindra Tissera

L0394  Foo Haw Li
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L0395  Sukith Ganendra Nanayakkara

L0396  D M D Reshan Lalanga Gunawardane

L0397  Tishan Harendranath Subasinghe

L0398  D B Srinatha Edirisinghe

L0399  K D Nishantha Senaratne

L0400  Palitha Sumeda Edirisuriya

L0401 A K M Preethie Udayanga Nilmini

L0402  P K G Harischandra

L0403  M Sumith Senaka Peiris

L0404  R P Umesha Sandarenu

L0405  A D T Rohana Thilakaratne

L0406  Satchithanandam Sakisan

L0407  Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Janitha Dissanayake

L0408  Gamage Nirmal Prasanna  Nanayakkara

L0409  Situge Sri Lakmal Jayasinghe

L0410 Ronali Kumudu Kumarasinha

L0411 Dodangodawattege Harinda Chandimal Wimalransi

L0412 Jayamaha Hitihamilage Manjula Ruwan Jayamaha

L0413 Ahmed Aflal Jezin Izzedeen

L0414 Madawala Liyange Don Chathura Jayath Liyanage

L0415 Hikkaduwa Liyanage Sonal Vibeesh  De Silva

L0416 K H Gamage Navoda Gimhani

L0417 Nalinda  Fernando

L0418 Sharon Antoinette De Silva

L0419 Lakmali Nadeeka Perera

L0420  Kulendran  Sivaram

L0421 Kushan Sumendra Samarasinghe

L0422  Malinda  Samaratunga

L0423  Thakshila Weerasekera

L0424  Meena Priyanka Koggala Wellala

L0425  Kavindra Gayajith Dassanayake

L0426  Thilak Dilhan Athapaththu

L0427  Hanthyge Nuwan Maduvirasha

L0428  Abeywarna Arachchige Haripriya Priyantha

L0429  Windana Pradeep Rajapaksha

L0430  Sumalka Mahitha Jayasuriya

L0431 R A Randika Sandamal Ranatunga

L0432  Christine Shiromi Jesudian

L0433  Prasadi Dileka Demuni

L0434  Wasanthika Wanigasinghe

L0435  Banuka Lakmin Tennakoon

L0436  Sathira Subhashana Weerakoon

L0437  Marie Dhishna Soyza

L0438  Eshani Lakshika  Thenuwara

L0439  Ranasinghe Arachchige Buddika Awanthi Kumari

L0440  A W Kapila Kumara  De Silva

L0441 Kankani Thanthri Prabath Sujeewa Chandrasiri

L0442  Don Simon Patabendi Nishantha De Silva

L0443  Mohammed Asif Cassim

L0444  Chinthaka Udayanga Thuduwewaththa

L0445  Errol Ricardo  Senathirajah

L0446  Anuradha Hemantha  Kothalawala

L0447  Chaminda Upendradasa  Silva

L0448  Fernando

L0449  Najith Wasana  Liyanage

L0450  Amal Eranga  Rodrigo

L0451 Manjula Chanaka Yapa  Abeytunga

L0452  Rangika  Piyumi

L0453  Sriganesha  Thanendrakumar

L0454  Sriyani  Kulasinghe

L0455  Iroshini Sandamali Soysa

L0456  Shalini Udara  Wickramanayaka

L0457  Mekhala Lakshani  Perera

L0458  Saman Kumara Rasaputhra

L0459  Priyanganie Asoka  Wijesinghe

L0460  Gihani Buddhika  Nanayakkara

L0461 Janak Priyantha  Hettiarachchi

L0462  Nirushanthi  Hajananth

L0463   Keerthirathna

L0464  Upul Dhanuka  Liyanagamage

L0465  Upulee Wishmika  Gunasekara

L0466  Shehan Nandika  Gunasinghe

L0467  Thavaratnasingam  Yugatharan

L0468  Gnanachandran

L0469  Noel Sanjeewa  Bandaranayake

L0470  Indika Aruna  Weerarathna

L0471 Nayantha Honduwa  Pathirana

L0472  Don Chandana  Wanaguru

L0473  Nidesh Dilshan  Fernando

L0474  Rohitha Padmalal  Wickramasinghe

L0475  Sidath Goshitha  Ariyaratne

L0476  Don Dinusha  Gunawardhana

L0477 Laksiri Randula  Chandraratne

L0478  Nalin Anuradha  Dissanayake

L0479  Saman Abeysiridera  Samarakoon

L0480  Sharanka Imesh  Perera

L0481 W Chandra Sriyalatha  Gunaratne

L0482  Hasini  De Silva

L0483  Balage Arachchige Dammika Deepani  Herath

L0484  Piyankara Jayadewa Gunarathna

L0485  Gayanath Dharshana  Wijemanne

L0486  R M Sumeda Nandika Medawela

L0487  Uduwaka Hewagamage Nishan Arjuna

L0488  Mathisha Bhadrika Don Hewavitharana

L0489  R M Kanchana Rosanayani  Ranasinghe

L0490  Dooratharsini Paskaran

L0491 Gajani Baskaran

L0492  Athauda Archchige Upul Sapath Sri Wijerathna

L0493  H T Udana R Siriwardana

L0494  Singakkuli Arachchige Amal  Prasad
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L0495  Lalin Dinesh Haren  Mendis

L0496  Kumar  Wijendra

L0497  R M M W Ashanthi Chamila Kumari  Medagama

L0498  Dumindu Dhananjaya  Premaratna

L0499  Janitha Jeevani  Herath

L0500  Edirisooriya Appuhamilage Janaka  Edirisooriya

L0501 Koku Hanivedige Pushpa  Virajith

L0502  Thushara Sampath  Ranathunga

L0503  Wannakuwatta Waduge Dilshan  Hemaka Perera

L0504  Dodawaththa Gamaralage Wimali  Wasana

L0505  Kalugalage Nishan Indika  Wimaladasa

L0506  Thushara Dimuth  Liyanagama

L0507  Nuwan Malinda  Diwakara

L0508  S A Mudiyanselage Diliep Tha Seneviratne

L0509  M K Patabandige Suj Lakmal Perera

L0510 I W S Panduka  Indatissa

L0511 Sundarlingam  Manopriya

L0512 Chamath Lasantha  Indrapala

L0513 Mahapatabendige Dinusha  Chathuranga Perera

L0514 E M Kande Walawwe Senara Ekanayake

L0515 Niranthari  Thirunavukarasu

L0516 Gowri Medhawanie  Perera

L0517 Dimunguvarige Nadeesha Nirmal Rohan

L0518 E M Daminda Prabath Ekanayake

L0519 S M Hemantha Sooriyabandara

L0520  Shaisutha  Logeshwaran

L0521 Kalahe Hewage Prathibha  Nisansala

L0522  Wijesekara Mahavidanelage Dilan  Sanjaya Perera

L0523  Mathugamage Don Dimuthu  Indunil

L0524  Herath Mudiyanselage Vipul  Bandara

L0525  Nadeesha Eranjaya  Perera

L0526  Tharindu Atapattu

L0527  Sundaravel  Jebewathani

L0528  Dishmi Sharmila  Weerasekara

L0529  Hewathanthrige Rangika Iroshani  Peiris

L0530  Neelanganie Priyadarshini  Hidellarachchi

L0531 Chandraprabha  Wijayasinghe

L0532  Iromi Nisansala  Yahampath

L0533  H B Arachchige Sandika Damith Hinguruwana

L0534  Dimuthu Sanja Wijeyaratne  Samaratunga

L0535  Balagalla Ralalage Rohana  Kumara

L0536  Warnakulage Chanaka Madushanka  Kumarasiri

L0537  Mangalage Suresh Jithendra  Perera

L0538  Balasuriyage Darshi Dhammika  Perera

L0539  A A D Chaminda Pushpakumara Athauda

L0540  Thanuka Roshan  Kulatunga

L0541 Marakkala Mannage Chaminda  Kumara

L0542  Wellala Godage Chaminda Sameera  Dharmasena

L0543  Sattambiralage Don Kalum Anthony  Vincent

L0544  Jayalathge Don Hasitha  Chaminda

L0545  Wewegedaralage Nalin  Chamara

L0546  Udaya Shanker  Sivasubramanium

L0547  Malwattage Jagath Priyashantha  Peiris

L0548  Viranga Sajeewa Hepita  Gamage

L0549  Avanthi  Liyanage

L0550  wewalasinghe Arachchige Priyanjith  Perera

L0551 Vidushan Mario Cherneka  Premathiratne

L0552  R Nalin  Malinga

L0553  Jayasinghe Arachchige Hasitha  Gayanajith

L0554  D Mudiyanselage Nandana Indunil  Dissanayake

L0555  W A U  Weerasinghe

L0556  Wickramasinghege Kithsiri  Wickramasinghe

L0557 Muditha  Fernando

L0558  Lakmali P A R  Wickremesooriya

L0559  Geethani Champa Kumari  Jayasinghe

L0560  W Dineshiya Shirangani  Liyanage

L0561 Ruwan Sanjaya  Karunaratne

L0562  G D Nuwan Bandara  Dharmasena

L0563  R G Pradeep Kanishka Gunasekera

L0564  L A A Deepa Rajapaksa Rajapaksha

L0565  Amila Sanjeeva  Fernando

L0566  Vathsalya  Weligama

L0567  Arumugam  Thevarajah

L0568  Sameera Wathsala  Wickramaratne

L0569  Muhammed Shaheed Muhammed Musthalie

L0570  Biyanvilage Amila Prabath Perera

L0571 Baratha Piyadigama

L0572  Senanayake Adipathige Upul Nishantha Perera

L0573  T D Pabash Priyankara

L0574  Herath Mudiyanselage Ajith  Kumara

L0575 Mohammed Mubarak Mohamed  Milad

L0576  H M Buddhikara Prasad  Gunawardena

L0577 R A Sameera Thilanga Perera

L0578  S Kelum Thamari Fernando

L0579  Don Gayan Kaushalya Pathirana

L0580  H D Jayalal Udayasiri Sirimanne

L0581 Dilanka Buddhika Kumara Irudeniya

L0582  K G Jayasanka Perera

L0583  Weerappulige Jayantha Siri

L0584  I O K Manula  Nanayakkara

L0585  Sathya Neelaweera

L0586  W A Mahesh Prasanna  Ratnayake

L0587  Shehan Amila Kahandagamage

L0588  H P Rasika Priyankara

L0589  N P G Shashika Irani Naotunna

L0590  J Suhan Rakshin  Dharmasuriya

L0591 D Sumith Kumara

L0592  J P M Aravinda

Member 

ID No            Full Name
Member 

ID No            Full Name



61

L0593  Dinusha Lakmini Amarakoon

L0594  G Arachchilage Ruwan Kumara Bandara

L0595  Kandanamulla Arachchige Nilantha  Lakshman

L0596  Shehan Gerard Lakshman Ellankoon

L0597  Ahangama Withanage Chamalie Madhubashanie

L0598  A A Janaka Jeewantha Abeysinghe

L0599  Munasinghe Arachchige Kelum  Prasanna

L0600  Kukule Kankanage Supun Pramuditha  Jayasena

L0601 Neelawarnapatibendige Rukshan Joseph  Fernando

L0602  W V Aruni Samanmali Fernando

L0603  Kudage Niluka  Sudarshani

L0604  P M Gnanasiri Himantha Ja Kumara

L0605  Maliduwa Liyanage Kushan Sharma  Dayananda

L0606  Waduge Lakshika  Ashara

L0607  Dhanushka Nuwan Kumara  Wijesinghe

L0608  Dimuthu Priyanga  Udugamasooriya

L0609  Metaramba Kanththage Tharanga  Weeravickum

L0610 Prabhajinie  Jayabaalasundaram

L0611 Gonalagodaghe Buwaneka Dinuwan Thilakaratne

L0612 Nadeeka Priyangani Amarasinghe

L0613 Mohamed Razman Irham  Jaldin

L0614 J A M Kalani Dananja Karunathilaka

L0615 Sinidu Thamara  Wijayaratne

L0616 Jayamuni Piyumika Madushani De Zoysa

L0617 Vajira Hapuhinna Jayaratne

L0618 Iddagoda Hewage Madura  Shantha

L0619 S K Sanjeewa Pushpakumara

L0620  Mohamed Mirshad  Muzamil

L0621 Deegoda Gamage Udika Chamara

L0622  Geekiyanage Sanjaya Udayanga  Samarasekara

L0623  Emil Chaminda Ranasinghege

L0624  Kalya Heshani Baptist

L0625  Dona Jinendra Kumari  Abeygunasekara

L0626  Weerasooriyage Namal Sanjaya  Wegiriya

L0627  Tony Bernard Susantha Ukwattage

Abeywickrama Liyanage SeelakaL0628  

L0629  Mohamed Thoufeek Mohamed  Sithas

L0630  Induruwage Rasika Asanga Theswa

L0631 Sujeewa Prithi Kumara  Gamage

L0632  Lalinthre Eeshani Fernando Daluwatte

L0633  T P G Harsha Rangika Weeraratne

L0634  K T M Dumindu Suranjith Thilakarathna

L0635  B M Chandana Dhammika Sarathchandra

L0636  Dinusha Lakmali Mayadunne

L0637  Shen Aiy  Chang

L0638  Imanthika K Ranaweera

L0639  Ranjana Sudeep Jayathilaka Perera

L0640  W A Rakitha Peshan Settinayake

L0641 Upul Jayapriya  Senanayake

L0642  Hapugahange Thilini Niluka Kumari Siriwardhana

L0643  Tarindu Rukshan  Haputhantri

L0644  Ranil Lalith De Alwis  Edirisinghe

L0645  P L Vindya Krishani Mar Cooray

L0646  Sinclair Nirojan  Donald

L0647  Thivanka Prashan  Costa

L0648  Thanaweera Arachchige  Thushara

L0649  Warnakulasooriyage Chamila Niroshanee Cooray

L0650  MIrani Sanjeewika Karunarathne  Weeraman

L0651 Kumarini Nadeesha  Seneviratne

L0652  Radampola Gamage Suraj  Saranaga

L0653  Wishwa Jayasri  Wickramasinghe

L0654  Wickrama Don Dilupa Sanjeewa Wickramasinghe

L0655  Rajitha Sagara Palihawadana Kodikara Kodikara

L0656  Gunasinghe Niwanthika Umayangani Silva  Silva

L0657  Packiyaratnam Solomon Romesh

L0658  Padmal Mahesh De Silva

L0659  Benthara Udara

L0660  Lakshi Jayawila

L0661 Samarakoonge Niroshan

L0662  Manjula Wijayawardena

L0663  Priyantha  Egodage

L0664  Mohamed Eenaz  Salie

L0665  Vidanalage Samantha Matharaarachchi

L0666  K M Kanchana Uditha Malalasekera

L0667  L Bonali Wasundara Perera

L0668  Wickrama Arachchige Buddini Chathurani Perera

L0669  Senaka  Ekanayake

L0670  K Appuhamilage Lakshika Niroshini Kalubowila

L0671 Aadambarage Piyanwada Kumudumalie Alwis

L0672  Sudesh Janaka Rathnayaka

L0673  Pradeep Chanaka Hapuarachchilage 

L0674  Sakalasingha Amila Chathuranga Rajapaksa

L0675 Fathima Rifka  Ziyard

L0676

L0677

L0678

L0679

L0680

L0681

L0682

L0683

L0684

L0685

L0686

L0687

L0688

L0689

L0690

L0691

L0692

 Nalaka Viduranga Kuruwitaarachchige

Jayakody Arachchilage Hirantha Jayakody

Thuiyadura Dulanjie Lakshika De Silva

K M Chamara Mahesh Ba Karunanayake

Doraisamy Prabu 

Madhuri Balasunderam

Nadeera Kavinga Karunasekara  

R.M.K.A.B Karagahawatta 

Muruganathan Selliah 

Siuharage Shashika Udayanga 

Randima Dilani Marakkala Manage 

Nilupa Nimali Gihani Fernado  

Rasika Sandaruwan Katugaha 

Bianca Haputhanthri 

Dhanushka Harshana Fernando

Nadarajah Thishanthan 

Kulasinghe Liyanage Manesh Eshanga
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L0693

L0694

L0695

L0696

L0697

L0698

L0699

L0700

L0701

L0702

L0703

L0704

L0705

L0706

L0707

L0708

L0709

L0710

L0711

L0712

L0713

L0714

L0715

L0716

L0717

L0718

 Bhawanujan Perinparaja

Mookan Dickshan Kumar

Somnas Chinthake Ranasinghe 

Amalka Aponso

Dinesh Sivagurunathan  

Madawala Liyanage Kalpa Udana 

Pavithra Samarasinghe

Manjula Thilakaratne 

Thushara Rankethge

Ruwan Chamara Dissanayake  

Sujani Fernando

Malith Pathirana 

Joseph Fernandez

Vipula Gunatilleka 

Manjulal Wass

Nissanaka Silva 

Sisira Kumara Ranathunga  

Ranga Nanayakkara 

Kanil Chandrasekera

M K D Harshani Prasangika

W M Krishantha Ruwan Bandara Wickramsinghe

Pitumpe Appuhamilage Chamal Hasaranga

Ruwan Tharinda Wigamage 

Haputhantrige Nimali Nirosha Dilhani 

Supun Nishad Jayasinghe

Sarukkale Mahawidanage Ajith Karunaratne 
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NOTICE OF THE AGM

To : All Members

Notice is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting 

of the MBA Alumni Association of University of Colombo will 

be held on Thursday, 25th June, 2020 at 5.30 pm. 

(The venue will be notified in due course, after giving due 

consideration to the regulatory health requirements created 

by the Covid-19 pandemic)

 

The Agenda will be as follows.

Registration – 5:00 pm onwards

National Anthem

Reading of the Notice convening the meeting –
Mr. Vidushan Premathiratne 

Welcome address by the President 2019/20 –
Ms. Manohari Abeyesekera

Reading the Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting 
and its adoption – Mr. Vidushan Premathiratne

Presenting of the Annual Review of the Executive 
Committee of 2019/20 – Ms. Manohari Abeyesekera

Tabling of Financial Report and Audited Accounts by 
the Treasurer and its adoption – Ms. Eshani Thenuwara

Tabling of Constitutional Amendments -
Mr. Vidushan Premathiratne

Unveiling of the New Logo 

Appointment of a Pro-tem Chairman

Election of the new Committee 2020/21

Appointment of Auditors for the year 2020/21

Address by the President 2020/21

Introduction of the Chief Guest

Address by the Chief Guest

Address by the Guest of Honour

Vote of thanks by the Secretary 2020/21

Close of the official session of the Annual General 
Meeting

If you have any nominations for the new committee, 

please fill in the attached form and send it together with 

the nominee’s brief profile (professional/ business) to 

the Secretary on or before 17th June 2020.

This year the Annual General Meeting will be limited to 

pre-registrants only. Therefore, I would be grateful if you 

would confirm your participation by email on or before 

22nd June 2020, in order to sort the required logistical 

arrangements.

E-mail: secretary.mbaalumni@colombomba.net or 

colombomba@gmail.com

 

By order of the Executive Committee

Vidushan Premathiratne

Secretary 
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The business environment is undergoing a revolution at an unprecedented scale. It 

is not the entities that are smart or strong that will survive, but the most dynamic 

and agile; they will thrive. This is a paradigm shift of a colossal proportion. In a fully 

agile entity, an employee will be recognized for his outcome and contribution, 

rather than how many hours he clocked inside an office cubicle. As a professional 

Association, it is our prime duty to be resilient and support the Nation, our Alma 

Mater, and the members of our Association, to accelerate this groundbreaking 

agile revolution towards success.

Name of the Association
MBA Alumni Association - University of Colombo

Registered Office
Faculty of Management & Finance,

University of Colombo,

No. 94, Kumaratunga Munidasa Mawatha,

Colombo 03.

Auditors
ACM IFHAAM & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Bankers
Hatton National Bank

Sampath Bank

Contact Information
www.colombomba.com

www.colombomba.org

THEME FOR THE YEAR 2020 -2021

"Embracing the Agile Revolution"
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